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LIST OF DIRECTORS AS ON 04.07.2024

HOSPITAL  ADMINISTRATOR
K. JAYARAJAN

AUDITORS
V. VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED  ACCOUNTANTS

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
[Formerly Medical Centre Trichur Limited]

No. V/302 & 303, Shornur Road, Near Viyyur Bridge, Thiruvambadi P O
Thrissur - 680 022.  Kerala., E-mail: daya.hospital@gmail.com

Ph : 0487-2475100 (30 Lines),  2334690,  2330543,  2323869, 3501000

01 Dr. V K ABDUL AZEEZ Managing Director

02 Dr. RAVINDRAN T K Director

03 Mr. SHAMSUDHEEN A K Director

04 Mr. P ABDUL REZAK Director

05 Mr. ABDUL JABBAR M M Director

06 Mr. P MOHAMMED ABDUL RAHIMAN Director

07 Dr. MUKESH MUKUNDAN Director

08 Mr. NOUSHAD K B Director

09 Mrs. FATHIMA M M Director

10 Mr. UMAR AMMU Director

11 Dr. SAHEER NEDUVANCHERY Director

12 Mr. SUJEER V V Director

13 Dr. FAZIL ABUBAKAR Director

14 Mr. ABDUL JEBBAR  P B Director

15 Mr. KUZHIYIL PARAMBIL AHAMMED RASHEEQUE Additional Director

16 Mr. MARATHETHIL HASSAN MUHAMMED BASHEER Independent Director

17 Mr. THRIVIKRAMAN PERINDIRI CHENATH Independent Director
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NOTICE

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN : U85110KL1977PLC002877

Regd Office : No. V/302 & 303, Shornur Road, Near Viyyur Bridge, Thrissur - 680 022.
Web site :dayageneralhospital.com

Email : daya.hospital@gmail.com                     Ph : 0487-2323869

Notice is hereby given that the 47thAnnual General Meeting of the members of
Daya General Hospital Limited will be held as shown below:

Date : 30th July, 2024

Day  : Tuesday

Time: 11.00 A.M

Venue: At the registered office of the Company situated at No. V/302 & 303, Shornur Road, Near
Viyyur Bridge, Thrissur, Kerala-680022, India.

To transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited financial statements including Balance
Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date together with all the notes annexed and the
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and in this regard, to pass the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements including Balance Sheet of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that
date together with all the notes annexed and the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and Cost Audit
Report thereon, placed before the meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To confirm the payment of Interim dividend on equity shares declared for Financial
Year 2023-2024 and to approve and declare the payment of Final dividend on equity shares
for the year ended 31st March,2024
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the interim dividend @70% (i.e., 700/- per share) on 42,522 Equity shares of
Rs.1000/- each paid to the shareholders as per the resolution passed by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 13th February, 2024 be and is hereby noted and confirmed as the Interim
Dividend for the Financial year 2023-2024.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a final dividend @ 70% (i.e., 700/- per share) on 42,522 Equity
Shares of Rs.1000/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,97,65,400/- as recommended by the Board of Directors
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, be and is hereby declared and the
same be paid to the eligible members of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Saheer Neduvenchery (DIN: 08267624) Director,
who retires by rotation

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Saheer Neduvenchery (DIN:08267624), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible
has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Umar Ammu (DIN: 08259895) Director, who retires
by rotation

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Umar Ammu (DIN: 08259895), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

5. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abdul Jebbar (DIN: 03105880) Director, who retires
by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment in this regard

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Abdul Jebbar (DIN: 03105880), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. To Regularize appointment of Additional Director Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil Ahammed
Rasheeque (DIN:02202130) as Director of the Company

        To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or Without modification, the following resolution, as
an Ordinary Resolution:

        “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil Ahammed Rasheeque
(DIN: 02202130), who was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board on 07th June, 2024 and
who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

7. To appoint Cost Auditor in the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and rule 6(2)
of the Companies (Cost records and Audit Rules) 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), based on the recommendation put forward by the
Audit Committee, the consent of the Board of Directors be and is hereby accorded to appoint Ms.
Sindhu Mohan T, Cost Accountant (Proprietor of SS & Associates) Poruthur Building, Near Mount
Carmel Church P.O, Mundur, Thrissur - 680541, as the Cost Auditor of the Company based on their
consent letter dated 28.06.2024, to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained by the
Company pertaining to Health services for financial year commencing on 01.04.2024 and ending on
31.03.2025 at a remuneration as may be decided by the Board in consultation with the Cost Auditor
which shall be subject to ratification by members in the ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez, Managing Director
(DIN: 00860120) of the Company or any other Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to submit the necessary intimation in E-Form CRA-2 with Registrar of Companies, Kerala &
Lakshadweep for appointment of Cost Auditors by the Company and to do all such other acts as
may be necessary from time to time to make the Resolution effective.”
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8. To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of 30,000/-(Rupees Thirty Thousand Only) to CMA Sindhu
Mohan T (Proprietor- SS & Associates, FRN No. 003506), for conducting Cost Audit of the Company
for the financial year 2024-2025, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is
hereby ratified.”
9.  To re- appoint Mr. P.C Thrivikraman as the Independent Director (Non-Executive)
(DIN: 10245742) of the Company for a period of five year

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013(‘the Act’) read with Schedule IV to the Act, the Companies
Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any other rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, based on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors for appointment of
Mr. P.C Thrivikraman (DIN: 10245742) as an Independent Director of the Company who has submitted
a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act
and who is eligible for re-appointment, and based on his evaluation of performance, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment to the Board, be and is hereby
re- appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second term of 5 (five)
consecutive years, commencing from 30thJuly, 2024 till 29th July, 2029.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez, Managing Director
(DIN: 00860120) of the Company or any other Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to sign and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Kerala and to do all such acts,
deeds, things and matter as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

10. To appoint Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer as the Independent Director
(Non-Executive) (DIN: 01795558) of the Company for a period of five year

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013(‘the Act’) read with Schedule IV to the Act, the Companies
Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any other rules made thereunder
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(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, based on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors for appointment of
Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer (DIN: 01795558) as an Independent Director of the
Company who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided
under Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for re-appointment, and based on his evaluation of
performance, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment
to the Board, be and is hereby re- appointed as the Independent Director of the Company to hold
office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from 30th July, 2024 till 29th July,
2029.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez, Managing Director (DIN:
00860120) of the Company or any other Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign
and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Kerala and to do all such acts, deeds,
things and matter as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

11. To Appoint Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran (DIN: 05341851) as Chairman cum
Whole Time Director of the Company

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179, 196 and 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force) and pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company and subject to any other
approvals as may be required, consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded for the appointment
of Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran (DIN: 05341851) as Chairman cum Whole-time Director
of the Company for a period of five years from the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company subject to shareholders approval at the Annual General meeting of the Company and the
payment of such remuneration as may be determined by the Board or any of its Committee, from
time to time, within the maximum limits of remuneration for Whole Time Director approved by the
members of the Company on such terms and conditions as set out in the foregoing resolution and
the explanatory statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in consideration of the performance of their duties, the Whole Time
Director shall be entitled to receive remuneration as stated therein:
i. Consolidated salary: Rs.1,50,000/- per month
ii. Sitting fees: Rs. 15,000/- for each of the Board and Committee meetings attended by him
iii. Performance bonus – NIL
iv. Perquisites: NIL
v. All other terms and conditions of his employment as may be decided by the Board.

The aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites/ benefits, including contributions towards Provident
Fund, Super Annuation Fund and Gratuity Fund, payable to all Whole Time Directors of the Company
taken together, shall be within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other
amendment thereto or modification thereof.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration specified
herein may be revised, enhanced, altered and varied from time to time, by the Board of Directors of
the Company, as it may, in its discretion deem fit, so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule
V of the Act including any other amendments, modifications made hereinafter in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez (DIN: 00860120), Managing
Director of the Company or any other Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign
and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Kerala and to do all such acts, deeds,
things and matter as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Daya General Hospital Limited

Sd/-
Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez

 (DIN – 00860120)
Managing Director

Date : 04/07/2024
Place : Thrissur
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NOTES
1. In continuation to the Ministry’s General Circular No.20/2020 dated 05.05.2020 and General
Circular No.02/2022 dated 05.05.2022 read with circulars dated 13-01-2021, 08-12-2021,
14-12-2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members. After due
examination it has been decided to allow the Companies whose AGMs are due in the year 2023 &
2024, to conduct their AGMs on or before 30th September, 2023 & 2024 respectively, in accordance
with the requirements laid down in Para 3 and Para 4 of the Central Circular No.20/2020 dated
05.05.2020.

2. A member of the company who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the
company. The proxies to be effective should be lodged with the Company at least 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding
fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company. Further since the facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM is provided, physical
attendance of such members who are attending through VC/OAVM is dispensed with. Accordingly,
the facility for appointment of proxies by such members who are attending through VC/OAVM will not
be available.

3. The facility for members to join the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be kept open at least
15 minutes before the time scheduled to start the meeting and shall not be closed till the expiry of
15 minutes after such scheduled time by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

4. In terms of Sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read together with the Rules made thereunder,
companies may send the notice of annual general meeting and the annual report, including Financial
Statements, Board Report etc. by electronic mode.

5. Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the
same with the Company email id at daya.hospital@gmail.com expeditiously.

6. Relevant documents referred to in this Notice and the following statutory registers will be
available for inspection in at the registered office of the company at any day during business hours
except on holidays up to and including the date of Annual General Meeting. Members can inspect the
same in electronic means by sending an email to Company at daya.hospital@gmail.com.

7. In accordance with the MCA circulars, the said registers shall be made accessible for
inspection through electronic mode, which shall remain open and be accessible to any member
during the continuance of the meeting.

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the company will remain closed from
Monday 29th July,2024 to 01st August,2024 (both days inclusive).
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Instructions for Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

a) During the meeting held through VC or OAVM facility, where a poll on any item is required,
the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending e-mails through their e-mail
addresses which are registered with the company. The said e-mails shall only be sent to the
designated e-mail of the company ie. daya.hospital@gmail.com.

b) AGM through VC or OAVM facility will be conducted through Zoom meetings and shall be
able to participate in the meeting with the below mentioned URL.

URL:  :  https://meet.google.com/suh-rbno-gva
Or

Dial: (US) +1 585-286-1073,  PIN: 592 760 017 #

Password: suh-rbno-gva

c) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

d) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

e) During the meeting held through VC or OAVM, where a poll on any item is required, the
members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails through their email addresses
which are registered with the company. The said emails shall only be sent to the designated email
address circulated by the company in advance.

f) The poll will take place during the meeting and the members may convey their assent or
dissent only at such stage on items considered in the meeting by sending e-mails to the designated
e-mails to the designated email address of the company, which was circulated by the company in
the notice sent to the members.

g) Further members will be required to allow camera and use internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

h) Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptop
connecting via mobile hotspot may experience audio/ video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use stable wi-fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

9. The Statutory Registers will be available for inspection by the Members at the venue of the
Annual General Meeting or at the registered office of the Company during business hours, except on
holidays up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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10. Route map of the AGM venue, pursuant to the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, is
also annexed.

11. The Shareholders may choose to hold the Ordinary Shares of the Company in the Demat
mode. The ISIN as allotted by NSDL is INE08BU01018. In case of any query, you may please get in
touch with the Company or the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. INTEGRATED REGISTRY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (BPID: IN200264), 2ND FLOOR, KENCES TOWERS,
NO.1 RAMAKRISHNA STREET, NORTH USMAN ROAD, T NAGAR, CHENNAI – 600017.

12. Web-link for assessing the notice of the Annual General Meeting as per Rule 18 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014 and Secretarial Standard - 2 is as follows:
    www.dayageneralhospital.com

By Order of the Board of Directors

Daya General Hospital Limited

Sd/-
Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez

 (DIN – 00860120)
Managing Director

Date : 04/07/2024
Place : Thrissur
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, the following Explanatory Statement set out
all material facts relating to the business mentioned under item no. 6 to 11 of the accompanying
Notice dated 04th July, 2024.

Item No.6: Regularize appointment of Additional Director Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil Ahammed
Rasheeque (DIN:02202130) as Director of the Company

The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014 appointed Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil Ahammed Rasheeque as the Additional Director in the
Company in the duly held board meeting of the Company dated 07th June, 2024.

As per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Additional director shall hold office
upto the date of the ensuing general meeting of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item
No. 6 of the Notice for regularization of appointment of additional director.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or Interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice,
except as a member of the Company, if any.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

Item No.7: To appoint Cost Auditor in the Company

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and
remuneration of the CMA Sindhu Mohan T (Proprietor - SS & Associates, FRN No. 003506) as Cost
Auditor of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending 31st March, 2025 at a fee of Rs.30,000/- as remuneration for cost audit services for the
financial year ending 31st March, 2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary
Resolution as set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for appointment of CMA Sindhu Mohan as the Cost
Auditor of the Company.



Annual Report - 2023-24

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or Interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice,
except as a member of the Company, if any.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

Item No.8: To ratify the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, on 04th July, 2024, approved the
appointment of CMA Sindhu Mohan T (Proprietor - SS & Associates, FRN No. 003506), at a
remuneration of Rs.30,000/- (Rupees Thirty Thousand only) to conduct the Cost Audit of the Company
for the financial year 2024-2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14
of Companies (Audit & Auditor Rules), 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required
to be ratified by the members of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends passing of the ordinary resolution as set out at Item No.8 of the accompanying
notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 9 and 10: To appoint Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed
Basheer as the Independent Director (Non-Executive) of the Company respectively for a
period of five years

As per Section 149(10) of the Companies Act,2013 an Independent Director shall hold office for a
term of upto 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing a special resolution by the Company for another term upto 5 (five)
consecutive years on the Board of a Company.

The members of the Company at the Annual General meeting of the Company held on 22nd August,2023
appointed Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer respectively, as
the Independent Directors of the Company for a period of one-year commencing from 22nd August,
2023 till 21st August, 2024.

Based on their performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and in terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan
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Muhammed Basheer are eligible for re-appointment as Independent Directors and had offered
themselves as re-appointed. The Board of Directors recommends the proposal to re-appoint them
as Independent Directors for a term as mentioned in the respective special resolutions.

The Company has also received a declaration from the Independent Directors signifying that they
meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer
fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made there under for re-appointment as
Independent Director and he is independent of the management.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of
Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer as Independent Director is
now being placed before the Members in general meeting for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. P.C Thrivikraman and Mr. Marathethil Hassan
Muhammed Basheer shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, including their respective
relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the foregoing resolution.

The Board recommends passing of the special resolution as set out at Item No.9 & 10 of the
accompanying notice for approval by the members.

Item No. 11: To appoint Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran (DIN: 05341851) as Chairman
cum Whole - time Director of the Company

The Board in its meeting held on 07th June, 2024 and based on the recommendations put forward by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, decided to appoint Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil
Raveendran (DIN: 05341851) as the Chairman cum Whole-time Director of the Company.

Due to the sad demise of Mr. Kuzhiyil Parampil Ahammed Koya, former Chairman cum Whole Time
Director of the Company, it was necessary for the Company to appoint an efficient member of the
Board to guide the Company in all terms which shall bring in a continued growth and success in the
Company. This appointment is effective immediately and fills the vacancy created by the unfortunate
demise of the former Chairman, Mr. Kuzhiyil Parampil Ahammed Koya.

The Board commented that Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran brings a wealth of experience
and expertise to the position, and that they are confident that his leadership will guide the company
towards continued growth and success.
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Therefore, the Board with the unanimous approval appointed Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran
as Chairman to the Company and subsequently necessitated for his change in designation from
Director to Whole Time Director of the Company with effect from the board meeting dated 07th June,
2024 subject to shareholder’s approval in the ensuing general meeting of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, including their respective
relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the foregoing resolution.

The Board recommends passing of the special resolution as set out at Item No.11 of the accompanying
notice for approval by the members.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Daya General Hospital Limited

Sd/-
Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez

 (DIN – 00860120)
Managing Director

Date : 04/07/2024
Place : Thrissur
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

To,
The Members of
DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U85110KL1977PLC002877

Your Directors are pleased to present 47th Annual Report of the Company and Audited Annual
Accounts for the Year ended 31st March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures
is given hereunder:

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN : U85110KL1977PLC002877

Regd Office : No. V/302 & 303, Near Viyyur Bridge, Thrissur - 680 022.
Web site :dayageneralhospital.com

Email : daya.hospital@gmail.com                    Ph : 0487-2323869

Particulars
Figures as at the end of Current

Financial Year ended on 31st

March 2024

Figures as at the end of
Previous Financial Year

ended on 31st March 2023

Revenue from operations 1,46,45,00,008           1,21,03,39,797

Other Income 1,45,29,629                 1,98,65,665

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs,

Exceptional items and Tax Expense 24,48,72,738 19,38,43,965

Less: Depreciation/Amortization /impartment 7,59,18,202 7, 22,87,876

Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional

items and Tax Expense 16,89,54,536 12,15,56,089

Less: Finance Costs 1,70,72,951 1,41,32,173

Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 15,18,81,585 10,74,23,916

Add/(less): Exceptional items —— ——

Profit /loss before Tax Expense 15,18,81,585 10,74,23,916

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 3,88,12,824 2,68,52,727

Profit /loss after tax for the year 11,30,68,761 8,05,71,189

Earnings per equity share:

Basic & Diluted 2659.06 1894.81

___________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Amount in Rs.
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2. OPERATIONS/WORKING RESULTS

The Company is engaged in the business of Hospital and Medical care. During the Year under
review, the company earned Net profit (after tax) of Rs. 11,30,68,761/- as against of Rs. 8,05,71,189/
- in the previous year. Your directors are confident of attracting substantial business during the
current financial year and expect the Company to perform well.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the year under review, there was a transfer to statutory reserves amounting to an aggregate
of Rs. 1,13,06,876/-.

4. DIVIDEND

The company had declared (70%) (i.e., Rs. 700 per share) Interim Dividend amounting to Rs.
2,97,65,400/- dated 13th February, 2024 as per the financial statement by utilizing the profits earned
by the Company during the financial year.

The Directors are also recommending a final dividend @ 70%, viz. Rs.700 per share on 42,522
equity shares of Rs. 1000 each amounting to Rs. 2,97,65,400/- for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2024. This will be paid subject to the same being approved by the shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 30th July, 2024.

5. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year of report there was no change in the nature of business of the company.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year, the Company has purchased the existing land, building and equipment of M/s Royal
Hospital, Kunnamkulam, for a total consideration of Rs.35 crore, out of which Rs.20.125 crore is
towards land value Rs.13.875 crore is towards the value of the building cost and the balance
Rs.1 crore is towards the value of equipment purchased/taken over from M/s Royal Hospital,
Kunnamkulam. The decision with respect to the same was passed in a duly held Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on 07th November,2023.

Apart from that there are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the Report.

7. ISSUE OF SHARES

During the Year under review, there were no issue of shares.

8. ISSUE OF DEBENTURES

During the Year under review, there is no issue of debentures.
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9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The Board of Directors is duly constituted. As of 31st March, 2024, the Company had 17 Directors.

Following were the major changes during the year under report:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013on the
recommendation of Audit Committee and also in the judgement of the Board that they are
independent, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Thrivikraman Perindiri Chenath (DIN:
10245742) and Mr. Marathethil Hassan Muhammed Basheer (DIN: 10228562) as Independent
Directors for a period of one year subject to approval of members by passing a special
resolution at theAnnual General Meeting of the Company held on 22nd August, 2023.

      Dr.Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdulazeez (DIN: 00860120) being eligible was re-appointed as
the Managing Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing
from 21st July, 2023 till 20th July, 2028, subject to approval of members in the Annual
General  Meeting of the Company held on 22nd August, 2023.

Dr. Fazil Abubakar (DIN:08538465) was appointed as the Whole-time Director for a period of
five years commencing from 21st July, 2023 till 20th July,2028, in the duly held Board meeting
dated 21st July, 2023 subject to approval of members in the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 22nd August, 2023.

Remuneration of following Whole-time Directors were revised in the board meeting held on
25th May, 2024 and the same was approved by the members in the Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 22nd August,2023:

Mr. Kuzhiyil Parampil Ahammed Koya – DIN:00860003
Mr. Musliamveettil Moosa Abdul Jabbar – DIN:02202109
Mr. Ambalathveettil Kunnamthodath Shamsudeen – DIN:02220959
Mr. Parayil Abdulrazak – DIN:00859994
Mrs. Muslyamueettil Mohamed Fathima – DIN:03378399

Mr. Kuzhiyil Parampil Ahammed Koya, former Chairman and Whole-time Director of the
Company passed away on 03rd June, 2024 and wherein the cessation of directorship and his
well appreciated contributions during his tenure in office was taken on record by the Board in
the duly held board meeting dated 07th June, 2024.

In the board meeting held on 07th June,2024, Dr. Thalakkale Kottilaveetil Raveendran (DIN:
05341851) was appointed as the Chairman cum Whole-time Director of the Company to fill
the casual vacancy caused due to the death of former Chairman cum Whole-time Director
Mr. Kuzhiyil Parampil Ahammed Koya. The same shall be subject to approval of members in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

In the board meeting held on 07th June, 2024 Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil Ahammed Rasheeque
(DIN:02202130) was appointed as the Additional Director of the Company and as per the
provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act,2013 his appointment shall be regularized in
the ensuing Annual General meeting of the Company.
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Designation of Mr. Parayil Abdulrazak was changed from Whole-time Director to Director in
the board meeting held on 07th June, 2024.

10. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer and
Mr.  Thrivikraman P C,Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

As per Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under report, the Company has
transferred an amount of Rs. 56,000/- to the Investor Education and Protection Fund on account of
un-claimed dividends pertaining to the period 2023-2024.

Following are the details with respect to unclaimed dividends till date:

12. BOARD COMPOSITION

     Financial Year Amount
2015-16             32,000(Un-claimed dividends)

2015-16         15,866(Debenture interest)
2022-23 28,000 (Final Dividend)

2023-24      28,000 (Interim Dividend)

Sl.
No. Name of Director Designation Date of

Appointment
No. of Board

Meeting
attended

1 PARAYIL ABDULRAZAK Wholetime Director 22/08/2005 6
2 KUZHIYIL PARAMPIL AHAMMED KOYA Wholetime Director 07/04/2009 6
3 VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDULAZEEZ Managing Director 01/09/2008 6
4 MUSLIAMVEETTIL MOOSA ABDUL JABBAR Wholetime Director 02/02/2010 6
5 AMBALATHVEETTIL KUNNAMTHODATH

SHAMSUDEEN Wholetime Director 25/11/2006 6
6 ABDUL JEBBAR  Director 29/09/2020 2
7 SUJEER VETTOM VEEDU Director 22/03/2018 4
8 MUSLYAMUEETTIL MOHAMED FATHIMA Wholetime Director 25/11/2010 6
9 KOTTATTIL BAVA NOUSHAD Director 28/07/2011 6
10 THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN Director 01/08/2012 6
11 PANIKKAVEETTIL PAYYAPPULLY

MOHAMEDABDULRAHIMAN Director 21/08/2012 6
12 UMAR AMMU Director 11/09/2018 3
13 SAHEER NEDUVENCHERY Director 11/09/2018 4
14 FAZIL ABUBAKAR Director 17/09/2019 6
15 MUKESH MUKUNDAN Director 18/02/2021 6
16 M H MUHAMMED BASHEER Director 22/08/2023 4
17 THRIVIKRAMAN P C Director 22/08/2023 4

_________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
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14. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors had
constituted Audit Committee in its meeting dated 13th September, 2022.

As the Company has appointed two Independent Directors on the Board with effect from the date
of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 22nd August, 2023 and looking into the
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), it was necessary for the Company
to comply with the following provisions of the Act:

the committee shall have minimum three Directors as members with at least two-thirds of the
members of the Audit Committee being Independent Directors;

        Based on the applicability of the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, two Independent Directors
were appointed on the Board and consequently the Board reconstituted the Audit Committee in
its board meeting dated 31st October, 2023, with the following members:

13. BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2023-2024, Six (6) meetings of the Board of Directors of the company
were held. Board Meetings and attendance of Directors are given below.

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors
present

1           25.05.2023         15              13
2           21.07.2023         15             15
3           20.09.2023         17             13
4           31.10.2023         17             17
5           28.11.2023         17            13
6           13.02.2024         17            16

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________

Sl No. Name of Director Designation

1 Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer Chairman (Non – Executive Independent Director)

2 Mr. Thrivikraman P C Member (Non – Executive Independent Director)

3 Dr. Mukesh Mukundan Member (Non – Executive Director)

4 Dr. T K Raveendran Member (Non – Executive Director)

However, the Board while referring to the provisions of section 177 of the Act which states that
the Chairperson of the Board should not chair the Audit committee and no executive director
should be member of the Audit committee, the Board reconstituted the members of the Audit
Committee in its meeting held on 04th July, 2024.
The reconstitution was made necessary due to the change in designation of Dr.Thalakkale
Kottilaveetil Raveendran (DIN:05341851) from Director to Whole-time Director of the Company
in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 07th June, 2024.
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The Audit Committee is now reconstituted with the following members which shall be effective
from 04.07.2024:

Sl No. Name of Director Designation
1 Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer Chairman (Non – Executive Independent Director)
2 Mr. Thrivikraman P C Member (Non – Executive Independent Director)
3 Dr. Mukesh Mukundan Member (Non – Executive Director)
4 Mr. Kuzhiyil Parambil

Ahammed Rasheeque Member (Non – Executive Director)

During the year the members of the Audit Committee met 6 (Six) times on the following dates:
a) 25.05.2023
b) 21.07.2023
c) 20.09.2023
d) 28.11.2023
e) 28.02.2024
f) 25.03.2024

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of
Directors has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting dated 13th

September, 2022.

As the Company has appointed two Independent Directors on the Board with effect from the
date of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 22ndAugust, 2023 and looking into the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), it was necessary for the
Company to comply with the following provisions of the Act:

 the Committee shall consist of three or more non-executive directors out of which not less
than one-half shall be independent directors;

Based on the applicability of the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, two Independent Directors
were appointed on the Board and consequently the Board reconstituted the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in its board meeting dated 31st October, 2023, with the following
members:

Sl No. Name of Director Designation

1 Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer Chairman  (Non – Executive Independent Director)

2 Mr. Thrivikraman P C Member  (Non – Executive Independent Director)

3 Dr. Mukesh Mukundan Member (Non – Executive Director)

4 Dr. T K Raveendran Member (Non – Executive Director)
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During the year the members of the CSR committee met 3 (three) times on the following dates:

a) 21.07.2023
b) 20.09.2023
c) 25.03.2024

D. STAKEHODLERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The formation of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is not applicable to your company during
the year under review.

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Board of Directors,
consisting of three directors. In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the

During the year the members of the Nomination and Remuneration committee met 2 (two) times
on the following dates:

a) 25.05.2023

b) 21.07.2023

C. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) COMMITTEE
Pursuant to the provisions Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had
constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee.
Further, Independent Directors were appointed in a duly held Annual General meeting of the
Company held on 22nd August,2023.

As the Company has appointed two Independent Directors on the Board with effect from the
date of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 22nd August, 2023 and looking into the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), it was necessary for the
Company to comply with the following provisions of the Act:

the Committee shall consist of three or more directors, out of which at least one
shall be an independent director;

Based on the applicability of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, two Independent Directors
were appointed on the Board and consequently the Board reconstituted the CSR Committee in
its board meeting dated 31st October, 2023, with the following members:

Sl No. Name of Director Designation
1 Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez Chairman (Executive Director)
2 Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer Member (Non-Executive Independent

Director)
3 Mr. Kottattil Bava Noushad Member (Non – Executive Director)
4 Mr. P P Mohamed Abdul Rahiman Member (Non – Executive Director)
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Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, The company is required to spend
CSR expenditure for the financial year 2023-24.

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is applicable to the Company as the Net
Profit exceeds Rs. 5 Crores and consequently the Company has to spend an amount of Rs. 19,41,243/
- during the year 2023-2024, being 2% of the average net profits earned during the three immediately
preceding financial years.

During the year, Company carried out several initiatives under the CSR program, which is detailed in
thereport on CSR activities attached as Annexure IIforming part of this report.

16. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Company has devised policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial
remuneration, Director’s qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related
matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. BOARD EVALUATION

Evaluation of the Board was made based on the role played by the Board in decision making, evaluating
strategic proposals, discussing annual budgets, assessing adequacy of internal controls, review of
risk management procedures etc. The evaluation of individual Director was carried out based on
various parameters such as participation in the Board and its Committee meeting, contribution towards
strategic proposals, suggesting risk mitigation measures, supporting in putting place internal controls,
governance, leadership and talent development and managing external stakeholders.

18. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID BEYOND THE PRESCRIBED LIMIT
There are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration beyond the prescribed limits.
19. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit its responsibility Statement: —
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss/profit of the
Company for the Financial year 2023-2024;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts, on a going concern basis; AND

e)     the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has laid down Internal Financial Controls. The evaluation of these Internal Financial
Controls was done through the Internal Audit process, established within the Company and also
through appointing professional firm to carry out such tests by way of systematic Internal Audit
Programme. Based on the review of the reported evaluations, the Directors confirm that for the
preparation of Financial Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024 the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed and the Internal Financial Controls are generally found to be adequate
and were operating effectively and that no material weaknesses were noticed.

21. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

There were no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors during the Financial Year
2023-2024.

22. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

23. DETAILS OF DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits under the provisions of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder during the year under review.

24. PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
        186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review: -

The Company has repaid loan amounting to Rs.32,75,480/- to M/s.Daya Emergency
Care Center Private Limited;

The Company has paid an amount of Rs.6.25 lakhs (previous year Rs.6.25 lakhs)
being call money towards application of equity shares in M/s Daya Emergency Care
Private Limited. The total investments made by the Company in the equity shares of M/
s Daya Emergency Care Private Limited as at March 31, 2024 is Rs.37.50 lakhs (375,000
equity shares of Rs.10 each);

The Company has purchased the existing land, building and equipment of M/s Royal
Hospital, Kunnamkulam, for a total consideration of Rs.35 crore, out of which Rs. 20.125
crore is towards land value Rs. 13.875 crore is towards the value of the building cost
and the balance Rs. 1 core is towards the value of equipment purchased/taken over
from M/s Royal Hospital, Kunnamkulam. The decision with respect to acquisition was
passed in a duly held Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
07th November, 2023.

Apart from the above transactions, the Company has not provided any guarantees during the year.
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25. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

Transaction entered into by the Company under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are in its
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.  (Form AOC-2 is attached as ANNEXURE
I to this report.)

26. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major
risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your
Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures
have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

27. VIGIL MECHANISM

The company is not required to constitute a Vigil Mechanism pursuant to provisions of the Companies
Act,2013 and the rules framed there under.

28. AUDITORS

A. Statutory Auditor

M/s. V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, Thrissur having (Firm Registration
No. 010739S) was re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five
consecutive years at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Companyheld on 22nd August, 2023,
to hold office from the conclusion of 46thAGM till the conclusion of 50th AGM to be held in the year
2028, at such remuneration as mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

B. Cost Auditor

As the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Rule 6(2) of
the Companies (Cost records and Audit Rules) 2014 was made applicable to the Company
from the financial year 2023-2024,Ms. Sindhu Mohan T, Cost Accountant (Proprietor of SS &
Associates) Poruthur Building, Near Mount Carmel Church P.O, Mundur, Thrissur – 680541
was thereby, appointed as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-2023 to
conduct Cost Audit for the period ended 31st March, 2024. Based on the recommendations put
forward by the Audit Committee, the Board approved the same in the duly held board meeting
on 20th September, 2023. Their appointment and terms of remuneration were ratified in the
Extra Ordinary general meeting of the Company held on 07th November,2023.

Based on the recommendations put forward by the Audit committee, the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on 04th July, 2024, decided to appoint Ms. Sindhu Mohan T, Cost Accountant
(Proprietor of SS & Associates) Poruthur Building, Near Mount Carmel Church P.O, Mundur,
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Thrissur – 680541 as the Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made
and maintained by the Company pertaining to Health services for financial year commencing on
01.04.2024 and ending on 31.03.2025 at a remuneration as may be decided by the Board in
consultation with the Cost Auditor which shall be subject to ratification by members in the ensuing
General Meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 30thJuly,2024.

29. QUALIFICATION IN AUDITOR’S REPORT AND EXPLANATION OF DIRECTORS

The Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders does not contain any qualifications.

30. AUDIT OBSERVATIONS

The Statutory Auditor has raised an observation in the Audit report which pertains to Reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, which is as follows:

“Based on our examination, which included test checks, and on the basis of information and
explanations given to us, the Company has used accounting software (Grandis) for maintaining its
books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the audit trail
facility was not operational from April 1, 2023 up to October 20, 2023 and audit trail facility was
operational only with effect from October 21,2023 for all the relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period from October 21,
2023 onwards”.

In response to the observation, theBoard commented that the Company has taken all necessary
steps to incorporate the audit trail facility with effect from 01st April,2023. However, the feature of
recording audit trail facility in the software was enabled from 21st October,2023 for all the relevant
transactions.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable
secretarial standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

32. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.Your
Directors further states that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuantto the
Sexual Harassment of Women under Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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33.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

The nature of the activity carried on by the Company at present is such that the requirement under
the aforesaid rules for disclosure of information as regards conservation of energy or technology
absorption is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not carried on during the period under review any activity relating to exports and
has not used or earned any foreign exchange.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

   The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the abundant co-operation and
assistance received from the Bankers, the employees, consultants at all levels and valued customers,
who with their competence, diligence, solidarity, co-operation and support have enabled the Company
to achieve the desired results.

For Daya General Hospital Limited

Place: Thrissur
Date:  4.7.2024

(Sd/-)
Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ
Managing Director
DIN: 00860120

(Sd/-)
Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

 Director
DIN: 05341851
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SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
                  including the value, if any NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements

                 or transactions’ NIL

f) Date of approval by the Board NIL

g) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 NIL

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN : U85110KL1977PLC002877

Regd Office : No. V/302 & 303, Near Viyyur Bridge, Thrissur - 680 022.
Web site :dayageneralhospital.com

Email : daya.hospital@gmail.com                    Ph : 0487-2323869

ANNEXURE- I

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s lengthtransaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
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2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sl                      Particulars                                                          Details

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.
g.

Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/
transaction
Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction

Value of transaction (Rs.)

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

VALIAKATH
KUTTIPPURATHEL
ABDULAZEEZ
(Managing Director)

M.M.ABDUL
JABBAR
(Wholetime
Director)

A K SHAMSUDEEN
(Wholetime
Director)

Remuneration of directors appointed in office or place
of profit

Subject to decision of Board

At arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business

35,00,000

25.05.2023

NIL

17,50,000

25.05.2023

NIL

17,50,000

25.05.2023

NIL

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis (Continued…)

Sl No.                      Particulars                                            Details

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.
g.

Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/
transaction
Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction

Value of transaction (Rs.)

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Remuneration of directors appointed in office or place
of profit
Subject to decision of Board

At arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business

17,50,000

25.05.2023

NIL

17,50,000

25.05.2023

NIL

KUZHIYIL PARAMPIL
AHAMMED KOYA

(Wholetime Director)

M.M. FATHIMA
(Wholetime

Director)

P ABDUL
RAZAK

(Wholetime
Director)

17,50,000

25.05.2023

NIL

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis (Continued…)

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.
f.
g.

Name (s) of the related party & nature of
relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/
transaction
Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including the
value, if any

Value of transaction (Rs.)
Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

FAZIL  ABUBAKAR (Director)

Remuneration of directors appointed in office or
place of profit

Subject to decision of Board

At arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business

Sl No Particulars Details

17,50,000
25.05.2023

NIL
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Sl No.                        Particulars

a. Name (s) of the related party &
nature of relationship

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction

c. Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/transaction

d. Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

e. Value of transaction (Rs.)

f. Date of approval by the Board

g. Amount paid as advances, if any

Details

Daya Food Mall (a concern in which some of the
Directors are interested)

Rental Income

1 Year

At arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of business. NA

Sl No.                            Particulars
a Name (s) of the related party & nature of

relationship

b Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction

C Duration of the contracts/arrangements/
transaction

d Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including the
value, if any

e Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions’

F Date of approval by the Board

g Amount paid as advances, if any

h Date on which the special resolution was
passed in General meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188

Details

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

                                               NA

NA

23,20,761

25.05.2023

NIL

For Daya General Hospital Limited

Place: Thrissur
Date:  4.7.2024

(Sd/-)
Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ
Managing Director
DIN: 00860120

(Sd/-)
Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

 Director
DIN: 05341851
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DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN : U85110KL1977PLC002877

Regd Office : No. V/302 & 303, Near Viyyur Bridge, Thrissur - 680 022.
Web site :dayageneralhospital.com

Email : daya.hospital@gmail.com                    Ph : 0487-2323869

ANNEXURE - II

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

I. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programs:

The CSR Policy of the Company has been formulated and adopted in terms of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made there under.The Policy inter alia Covers the
Following.

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive
health care and sanitation;
Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;
Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agroforestry, conversation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air
and water;
Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional arts and handicrafts;
Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports;
Rural development projects and public utility services;
Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.

The CSR Policy can be viewed on the Company’s website at www.dayageneralhospital.com.

The Company undertakes CSR activities specified in the CSR Policy which is in line with the
Schedule VII to the Act. Activities are predominantly carried out in the areas where the Company’s
offices or units are located.
The Company has a Charitable Trust, Daya Charitable Trust, which is the principal arm in
implementing various CSR programs / projects. Through its social investments, the Company
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addresses the needs of communities residing in the vicinity of its facilities, taking sustainable initiatives
in the areas of health, education, environment conservation, infrastructure and community development
and response to natural calamities. During the year under review, the Company has carried out CSR
activities. Focus was given on supporting nation building, improving the quality of life of socially and
economically backward people, conducting health awareness Programme, providing health care
services, contribution towards development of public utility services etc.

Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules,
2014, the Board of Directors have constituted a CSR Committee.

II. Composition of CSR Committee of the Board:

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’ was initially constituted by the Board with the following
members:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation

    1 Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez Chairman (Executive Director)

    3 Mr. Kottattil Bava Noushad Member (Non – Executive Director)

    4 Mr. P P Mohamed Abdul Rahiman Member (Non – Executive Director)

Later the Committee was reconstituted in the board meeting held on 31st October, 2023 with the
following members:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation

  1 Dr. Valiakath Kuttippurathel Abdul Azeez Chairman (Executive Director)

  2 Mr. M H Muhammed Basheer Member(Independent Director)

  3 Mr. Kottattil Bava Noushad Member (Non – Executive Director)

  4 Mr. P P Mohamed Abdul Rahiman Member (Non – Executive Director)

During the year under review, the Committee met thrice on 21st July, 2023, 20th September, 2023 and
25th March, 2024 respectively.

III. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of CSR:

Rs. 9,70,62,156/- (as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013).

IV. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item III above):

Rs. 19,41,243.12/-

V. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a. Total amount spent for the financial year 2023-2024: Rs. 19,42,000/-

b. Amount transferred to Trust: Rs. 6,85,000/-

c. Manner in which amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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For Daya General Hospital Limited

Place: Thrissur
Date:  4.7.2024

(Sd/-)
Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ
Managing Director
DIN: 00860120

(Sd/-)
Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

 Director
DIN: 05341851

VI. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit
of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report: NA

VII. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
company:

We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy, as approved by the Board, has been implemented and
the CSR committee monitors the implementation of the projects and activities in compliance
with the Company’s CSR objectives.
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Ub-d-IvS¿amcpsS dnt∏m¿´v

{]nb Hmlcn DSaIsf,

Zb P\d¬ Bip]{XnbpsS 47˛mw aXv hm¿jnI
s]mXptbmKØn¬ ]s¶Sp°p∂ am\y Hmlcn
DSaIsf lm¿±ambn kzmKXw sNøp∂p.

\ΩpsS Bip]{XnbpsS {]h¿Ø\ßfnepw
]ptcmKXnbnepw \n¿ÆmbI ]¶phln® am¿§
Z¿inbpw [njWmimenbpambncp∂ {]nbs∏´
sNb¿am≥ s{]m^.sI.]n.AlΩZv tImb kmdn
s‚ hntbmKw hnhcWmXoXamsW∂p ]dbmsX
hø.

Ign™ h¿jw Hcp Iº\nsb∂ \ne°p≈
\ΩpsS hf¿® ]e\ne°pw Bimhlambncp∂p.
Ip∂wIpfw tdmb¬ Bip]{XnbpsS Gs‰Sp°
epw \ΩpsS {]Xo£°\pkrXamb hf¿®bpw
Hcp \√ Bip]{Xn°v th≠n {]h¿Ø\coXnI
fn¬ hcpØnb am‰hpw ]e tZiob AwKoImc
ßfpw ]pXnb Un∏m¿´vsa‚pIfpw hn]peoIcn®
k∂≤˛ImcpWy {]h¿Ø\ßfpw XpSßn
kw`h _lpeamb  Hcp ]mXbnepsSbmbncp∂p
\ΩpsS hf¿®.

NnIn’m kuIcyßfpsS ImcyØn¬ \mw
Ft∏mgpw ]pXnb Un∏m¿´vsa‚pIƒ°v F√m
h¿jhpw {]mapJyw \¬Inbncp∂p. CØhW
C F≥ Sn Un∏m¿´vsa‚n¬ k-vIƒ t_bvkv
k¿Pdn (skull base surgery) bn¬  {]tXyI ]cnio
e\w e`n® tUm.e£van \ΩpsS Bip]{Xnbn¬
tN¿∂p. Iptd°mew \Ωƒ ]e ImcWß
fm¬ \n¿Ønh®ncp∂ hr°am‰nh°¬
ikv{X{Inb tUm.Sn.Sn.t]mfns‚ t\XrXzØn¬
{Sm≥kvπmt‚j≥ bqWn‰v Cu h¿jw henb
tXmXn¬  ]p\:cmcw`n°pIbmWv. hcpw amkß
fn¬  {Sm≥kvπmt‚j\v th≠n At\Iw
tcmKnIƒ ImØncn°p∂p≠v.  s]mXpsh
Xnct°dnb Im¿UntbmfPn Un∏m¿´vsa‚ns‚
{]h¿Ø\ßƒ IptdIqSn BbmkclnX
am°m≥ sNdp∏°mc\mb Im¿UntbmfPnÃv
tUmŒ¿ kp¬Øm≥ \ΩpsS IqsS tN¿∂p.
C‚¿sh≥jW¬ Im¿UntbmfPnbn¬ ]e
]pXnb NnIn’mcoXnIƒ°pw (C≥{SmIm¿Un
bmIv Un{^n{_ntbj≥, s]cn^d¬ Un{^n
{_ntbj≥ temßv HIvfqj≥, {Sm≥Ctkm
^mKnb¬ Ft°m, tIm¨t{SmÃv Ft°m,
B¿t´dnb¬  ho\kv tπ°v) At±lw XpS°an´p.
F√m Fa¿P≥kn tkh\ßfpw IrXyambpw
]q¿ÆXtbmsSbpw  \¬Im≥  \ap°v Ign™p.
C≥{SmIm¿UnbmIv Un^n{_ntbj≥, s]cn^d¬
B≥PntbmπmÃn, {Sm≥kvCutkm^mPnb¬
Ft°m, tIm¨{SmÃv Ft°m, k¶o¿Æamb

B≥Pntbm πmÃnIƒ (IVVS, OCT) XpSßn G‰hpw
henb  Im¿UnbmIv sk‚dpIfn¬  sNøp∂ ]e
NnIn’mcoXnIfpw \ΩpsS  Bip]{Xnbn¬
Bcw`n°m≥ At±lØns‚ ITn\ ]cn{iaw
hgnbmbn.  CXn¬ ]eXpw Xr»qcn¬  Xs∂ BZy
ambncp∂p.

Cu h¿jw πmÃnIv k¿Pdn Un∏m¿´vsa‚ns‚
{]h¿Ø\ßfn¬ KWyamb ]ptcmKXnbp≠mbn.
{^o^vfm∏pIfpw, {_Ãv do I¨kv{S£≥, apJ
sshIrXw icnbm°¬  XpSßn At\Iw ]pXnb
ikv{X{InbIƒ AhnsS \S∂p.  {In´n°¬  sIb¿
hn`mKw, k¿Pdn hn`mKw, \yqtdm k¿Pdn F∂nh
sb√mw Bip]{XnbpsS hcpam\ hf¿®bn¬
{][m\  ]¶v hln®p.

a‰v Un∏m¿´vsa‚pIfptSbpw kw`mh\Iƒ H´pw
]ndInembncp∂n√.

\mw ]pdØv Hcp GP≥kn°v \¬Inbncp∂
CtaPnßv hn`mKw (CT, MRI) Cu h¿jw  \Ωƒ
Xs∂ Gs‰SpØp. Cu hn`mKØns‚ ]p\¿
cq]oIcWhpw \n¿ΩmW {]h¿Ø\ßfpw
\S∂psIm≠ncn°p∂p.  Ipd®v  amkßƒ sIm≠v
Xs∂  CXns‚  apS°v apX¬  \ap°v Xncn®pIn´nbn
cn°p∂p. \ΩpsS  tdUntbm Ubt·mknkv  B‚ v
CtaPnßv hn`mKØn¬ ]e C‚¿sh≥jW¬
s{]mkoPnbdpIfpw hnPbIcambn sNbvX
h¿jambncp∂p  IS∂p t]mbXv.

et_md´dn hn`mKØn¬ \ap°v e`n® NABL
AwKoImcØn\\pkcn®v Izmfn‰nbnepw, s{]mkkn
epw, tkh\Ønepw henb ]ptcmKXnbp≠mbn.
emt_md´dn sSÃpIfpsS  dnkƒ´v \qdv iXam\w
AIypdkn F∂ Ahÿbnte°v \Ωƒ
FØnbncn°p∂p.  AXpt]mse Xnc°v h¿≤n®
]tØmfPn hn`mKØn¬  kaqeamb  am‰ßƒ˛
Hmt´mam‰n°v ssat{Im tSmw, Hmt´mam‰n°v
s{]mkknßv bqWn‰v, {Kmknßv tÃj≥  F∂o
]pXnb Bhnjv°mcßƒ˛ D≠mbn. _tbm]vkn
dnt∏m¿´pIƒ GXm\pw an\p´pIƒ°p≈n
e`yam°p∂ {ItbmÃm‰ v (Frozen Section)
kwhn[m\hpw C∂v \ap°p≠v.  CsX√mw \ΩpsS
tcmKnIƒ°v  G‰hpw D∂Xamb k¿Δokv
kuIcyßfmWv \¬In hcp∂Xv.

]ƒatWmfPn hn`mKØn¬  C‚¿sh≥j\¬
]ƒatWmfPnÃmbn ]pXpXmbn tUm.AarX
taml≥ FØnbn´p≠v. Cu hn`mKØn¬
sNbvXpsIm≠ncn°p∂ EBUS, t{_mt¶mkvtIm∏n,
_tbm]vkn XpSßnbh°pw, t{_mt¶mkvtIm]nIv
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IotamsXdm∏n acp∂pIƒ  hºn® hne°ngnhn¬
\¬In Im≥k¿ tcmKnIƒ°v Bizmkw
]Icm\p≈  ]≤Xnbpw {]mtbmKnIam°n.  Iotam
sXdm∏n hn`mKØn¬  tcmKnIfpsS FÆw
h¿≤n®ncn°p∂p.

tcmKnIƒ°pw IqsSbp≈h¿°pw AhcpsS
apdnbn¬ \n∂v Xs∂ \gvknßv tÃj\nep≈
\gvkpamsc tcmKhnhcw Adnbn°m\pw hnfn
°m\pw Ignbp∂ \gvkkv ImfnwKv knÃw F∂
kwhn[m\w {][m\s∏´  sk£\pIfnse√mw Cu
h¿jw G¿s∏SpØn.

Cu h¿jsØ \n¿ÆmbIamb  Hcp NphSp
sh∏mbncp∂p Ip∂wIpfw tdmb¬ tlmkv]n‰¬
Gs‰SpØXv. \ΩpsS ]cn[nbnep≈ hnebv°v
Ah¿ AXv \¬Im≥ Xømdmbt∏mƒ  \Ωƒ AXv
Gs‰SpØv \nehmcap≈ Hcp ÿm]\am°n am‰m≥
{ian®psIm≠ncn°p∂p.  Imjzmen‰n, H.]n. te_¿
dqw, sF.kn.bp apdnIƒ F∂nhsb√mw \mw  ]p\¿
\n¿Ωn®p. tcmKnIfpsS FÆw h¿≤n®n´p≠v.
Hm∏tdj\¬ t{]m^n‰n\∏pdw hcpam\w {Iam\pKX
ambn h¿≤n®v hcp∂p≠v.

Cu h¿jsØ  hcpam\w IW°nseSp°ptºmƒ
\ΩpsS hcpam\w 20% h¿≤n®n´p≠v.  ASpØ
h¿jw \ΩpsS  {]Xo£ 35% amWv. hcpam\w \ne
\n¿Øm\pw h¿≤n∏n°m\p≈ {iaßfns√¶n¬
Bip]{Xn hcpam\Øn¬  amμyw kw`hn°m≥
km[yXbp≈Xv sIm≠v amt\Pvsa‚ v _nkn\ v
hn]peoIcn°m\pw h¿≤n∏n°m\p≈ \nc¥c
{ianØnemWv.  ASpØ h¿jw h≥ tXmXnep≈
Hcp hn]peoIcWØn\mWv \mw Hcpßp∂Xv.
AXn\v th≠n CIzn‰n aqe[\w kamlcn°m\p≈
{iaßƒ XpSßn°gn™p.

A°mZanIv cwKØpw KpW\nehmcw Db¿Øm
\p≈ {iaØnepw h≥ IpXn®p Nm´amWv Cu
h¿jw D≠mbn´p≈Xv. \nehnep≈  A©v
_ncpZm\¥c tImgvkpIƒs°m∏w {In´n°¬
sIb¿ hn`mKØnse kq∏¿kvs]jymen‰n
tImgvkn\pw a≤ytIcfØn¬  BZyambn \ap°v
AwKoImcw e`n®n´p≠v.  Im¿UntbmfnPn,
Hm¿tØm]oUnI- vkv Fa¿P≥kn saUnkn≥
F∂nhbnep≈  AwKoImcØn\pap≈ \S]SnIƒ
]ptcmKan°p∂p.

tZiob A¥¿tZiob tIm¨{^≥kpIfn¬
Izmfn‰n hn`mKØn\v \nch[n {]_‘ßƒ
AhXcn∏n°pIbpw Ahm¿UpIƒ t\SpIbpw
sNbvXn´p≠v. {In´n°¬  sIb¿, NABH Ãm≥tU¿
Uvkv, ¢n\n°¬ ^m¿akn F∂o taJeIfn¬
a‰mip]{XnIƒ°v ]cnioe\w \¬Ip∂  Hcp
ÿm]\ambn  \mapw  Db¿∂n´p≠v. AXnt\mS\p
_‘n®v ]{¥≠ne[nIw h¿°vtjm∏pIƒ Ign™
h¿jw \SØpIbp≠mbn.

Syqa¿ amt\Pvsa‚ v XpSßn At\Iw NnIn’m
coXnIƒ ]pXpXmbn XpSßm\pw Ct∏mƒ Ignbpw.

sskIym{Sn, C.F≥.Sn, Im¿Untbm sXmdmknIv
k¿Pdn, hmk-vIpem¿ k¿Pdn F∂nhbn¬
IqSpX¬ ]pXnb tUmŒ¿am¿ Cu h¿jw
FØnbn´p≠v. tUm.\nhn≥ tPm¿Pv, tUm.
aqk°p™n F∂nhcpsS  t\XrXzØn¬  lrZb
ikv{X{InbIƒ \∂mbn  \S∂p hcp∂p.
]oUnbm{SnIv sF.kn.bp Cu h¿jw XpSßnbn
´p≠v.

KpcpXambn tcmKw _m[n®v sF.kn.bp. hn¬
\n∂v  am‰p∂ tcmKnIƒ°v XpS¿®bmb
tamWn‰dnwKv ^eßƒ \gvknwßv tÃj\nepw
NnIn’n°p∂ tUmŒdpsS t^mWnepw e`y
am°p∂ tUmkn F∂ tamWn‰dnßv knÃw
\ΩpsS  Bip]{Xnbn¬  Bcw`n®n´p≠v.
tcmKnbv°p≠mIp∂ sNdnb imcocnI hyXnbm\
ßƒ t]mepw NnIn’n°p∂ \gvkpamtcbpw
tUmŒ¿amtcbpw Adnbn°m\pw BhiyamIp
tºmƒ CSs]Sm\pw CXv klmbn°pw.

ImcpWy {]h¿Ø\ßfnepw \mw  Cu  h¿jw
kPohambncp∂p. AXnZcn{Z¿°v ]Xnhmbn
`£WIn‰pIƒ, km\nt‰mdnbßfnepw AKXn
aμncßfnep≈h¿°v `£Whpw a‰v PohnX
kuIcyßfpw Xmgv∂ kmºØnI ÿnXn
bnep≈h¿°v ]mtTym]IcWßƒ F∂nßs\
bp≈ tkh\]cn]mSnIƒ°v  Poh\°mcptSbpw
amt\Pvsa‚nt‚bpw Iq´mbva Cu cwKØv
kPohambncp∂p.

]cc£ F∂ {]mYanI ]cnNcW ]cnio\
]cn]mSnbneqsS IqSX¬  t]¿°v ]cnioe\w
\¬Ip∂ ]≤Xn XpS¿∂psIm≠ncn°p∂p.
Xr»q¿ IMA bpambn klIcn®v Gbv©¬kv Hm v̂
Xr»q¿ F∂ t]cn¬ tlmkv]n‰en¬ FØp∂Xp
hscbp≈ ASnb¥nc {]otlmkv]n‰¬
]cnNcW am¿§ \n¿t±ißƒ t^mWneqsS
\¬In IqSpX¬ A]ISßƒ Hgnhm°m\p≈
]≤Xnbn¬ \mapw ]¶mfnbmbn´p≠v.

tZiob Sn._n.\n¿Ωm¿P\ ]cn]mSnbpsS
`mKambn Sn._n.tcmKnIƒ°v kzImcymip]{XnIƒ
hgn acp∂pIƒ  kuP\yambn \¬Ip∂ sÃ]vkv
(Steps for TB  Elimination  in Private Sector) \ΩpsS
Bip]{Xnbn¬  5 h¿jambn XpS¿∂p hcp
∂p≠v. Ign™mgvNbn¬  CXv hnebncpØm≥
FØnb temImtcmKy kwLS\m {]Xn\n[nIƒ
\ΩpsS {]h¿Ø\coXnsb A\ptamZn°pI
bp≠mbn.

a‰v ]e k∂≤ kwLS\Ifpambn  klIcn®v
BtcmKy cwKsØ s]mXphmb {]iv\ßsf
°pdn®v skan\mdpIfpw N¿®Ifpw \SØn
s]mXpP\ t_m[h¬°cWØn\p≈ {iaßƒ
Cu h¿jhpw XpS¿∂v t]m∂p.
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C≥s^£≥ I¨t{Smƒ {]mIvSokn\v  anI®
Bip]{Xn°p≈ Ahm¿Uv, F.F®v.]n.sF
(Atkmkntbj≥ Hm^v sl¬Øv sIb¿
s{]msshtUgvkv C¥y) \ap°mWv e`n®Xv.
A¥¿tZiob \nehmcØn¬ Xs∂ G‰hpw
Ipdhv Bip]{XnP\y C≥^£≥ \ΩpsS
Bip]{XnbnemWv. AtXmsSm∏w anI® \gvknßv
tkh\Øn\v \ΩpsS \gvknßv Ãm^ns\  Xr»q¿
amt\Pvsa‚ v Atkmkntbj≥, ssh.Fw.kn.F
XpSßnb kwLS\Iƒ  BZcn°pIbp≠mbn.
300 InS°Ifn¬ Xmsgbp≈ tIcfØnse
G‰hpw \√ Bip]{Xn°p≈  FICCI Ahm¿Uv
CØhW \ap°mbncp∂p. \ΩpsS Poh\°m
cpsS ]cnio\hpw tkh\hpw tcmKo ]cnNcW
Øn¬ {]Xn^en°p∂p≠v. 98% s]mkn‰ohv ̂ oUv
_m°v BWv \ap°v tcmKnIfn¬ \n∂pw
Iq´ncp∏pImcn¬  \n∂pw e`n®Xv. AtXmsSm∏w
tZiob XeØn¬ anI® \gvknßv ]cnNcWØn
\p≈  F≥.F._n.F®v A{IUnt‰j≥ \ap°v
e`n®p. aZ¿ {^≠ven tlmkv]n‰en\p≈ k¿°m¿
AwKoImchpw \ap°v Cu h¿jw e`n®p. Izmfn‰n
_ntbm≠v A{IUnt‰j≥ F∂Xn¬  t^m°kv
sNbvXpsIm≠p≈ {]h¿Ø\ßfnemWv \mw
{i≤ tI{μoIcn°p∂Xv.  A¥¿tZiob \nehmc
ØnseØm\p≈ JCI A{IUnt‰j\p≈
{]h¿Ø\ßfpw \mw XpSßn°gn™p.

Ign™ c≠v h¿jambn \mw XpS°an´ \ΩpsS
Bip]{Xnbnse Hmtcm hn`mKØntebpw \S]Sn
{IaßfpsS ]p\¿cq]oIcWw GXm≠v ]q¿Øn
bmb h¿jambncp∂p CXv. ]pXnb  Hcp
C≥jqd≥kv Uk-vIv D≠m°nbXpw C≥jqd≥kv
hcpam\w aq∂nc´n h¿≤n∏n®Xpw CXpsIm≠mWv.
ECHS, ESI, KASP, ss{]h‰v C≥jpd≥kv
F∂nhbn¬ \n∂v \ap°v h¿jßfmbn e`n°m
Xncp∂ IpSn»nIbn¬  hensbmcp `mKw \ap°v
t\SnsbSp°m≥ Ign™p. e`n°mØ IpSn»nI
°v \mw \nba\S]Sn FSpØpsIm≠ncn°p∂p.
C≥jqd≥kv hcpam\w \ΩpsS  hcpam\Øns‚
40% te°v hf¿® F∂ e£yØnseØnsIm≠n
cn°p∂p.

Ãm¿, ICCIF∂o C≥jqd≥kv Iº\nIƒ \Ωp
sS C≥jqd≥kv tkh\ßsf  am\n®v \ΩpsS
Bip]{Xnsb Xr»qcnse {]nt^¿Uv IÃa¿
F∂ \nebn¬ AhcpsS  IÃtagvkns\ \ap°
b°p∂p≠v.

Bip]{XnbpsS kpKaamb {]h¿Ø\Øn¬
tbmKyXbpw A\p`h⁄m\hpap≈ Ccp]tXmfw
Poh\°msc amt\Pvsa‚ v sehen¬ FSpØn
´p≠v. Ch¿°v DØchmZnXzap≈  hn`mKßfn¬
\nc¥cw AhtemI\ ao‰nßpIfpw IqsSbp≈
h¿°v Sm¿P‰pIfpw s{]mPŒpIfpw \¬In
Ahsc ÿm]\w Dt±in°p∂ coXnbnep≈

Hu´v]p´v e`n°m\pw  \mw  {ian®n´p≠v.  AtXmsSm
∏w amt\Pocnb¬ XeØnep≈hsc {]h¿Ø\
ßƒ hniIe\w sNbvXv sa®s∏´  {]h¿Ø\ßƒ
ImgvNh°p∂h¿°v  t{]m’ml\w  \¬Ip∂p
ap≠v.

Cu h¿jw KÃv dntej≥kv hn`mKw tlmkv]n‰m
en‰n hn`mKw IqSpX¬ i‡ns∏SpØpIbpw
an°hmdpw tcmKnIƒ°v AhcpsS tkh\w
e`n°p∂ coXnbn¬ B hn`mKsØ cq] I¬]\
sNøpIbpw sNbvXp. ko\nb¿ kn‰nk¨ khn
tij {i≤bpw tkh\hpw \¬Im≥ Pdnbm{SnIv
tkh\ hn`mKw Cu h¿jw XpSßn. AXpt]mse
Biq]{Xnbn¬ InS°p∂ tcmKnIfpsS  {]iv\ßƒ
]cnlcn°m\pw AhcpsS Bhiyßƒ  XzcnXKXn
bn¬ \ndth‰m\pw hm¿Uv sk{I´dnamsc  \nban®p.
CØcw {]h¿Ø\w Xr»qcnse G‰hpw \√ IÃa¿
k¿hokv \¬Ip∂ Bip]{Xn F∂ JymXn \ap°v
\¬Inbn´p≠v.

am¿°‰nßv hn`mKw IqSpX¬ i‡ns∏SpIbpw
hnhn[  aoUnbIfn¬ \mw km∂n≤yadnbn°pI
bpw Aßns\ Hcp {_m‚mbn hfcpIbpw
sNbvXn´p≠v. \Ωƒ e£yam°p∂ hn`mKßƒ
°nSbn¬ Bip]{Xn hntijßƒ  FØp∂p≠v.
tIcfØnse F√m Pn√Ifn¬ \n∂pw \ap°n∂v
tcmKnIsfØp∂p≠v.

_n√nwKv knÃw, F®v. B¿. knÃw F∂nh
CØhW KWyamb  am‰ßƒ°v hnt[bambn.
_n√nwKv hn`mKØnse ]p\:{IaoIcWhpw
C≥jqd≥kv _n√nßnep≈  am‰ßfpw Bip]{Xn
Iƒ  Nm¿÷pIƒ h¿≤n∏n°msX Xs∂ hcpam\w
10 % h¿≤n∏n®p.  Poh\°mcpsS ]p\{IaoIcWhpw
Hmtcm hn`mKØnepw Imcy {]m]vXnbpw ss\]pWy
hpap≈hsc Hm∏tdj≥kv G¬]n®  Imcy£aX
h¿≤n∏n®n´p≠v.  AtXmsSm∏w Cu {]h¿Ø\ßƒ
hnebncpØmhp∂ DØchmZnXzt_m[w Ah¿°v
\¬IpIbpw {]h¿Ø\ßƒ°v klmbIamb
hnhn[ \nb{¥Wßƒ sIm≠phcnIbpw sNbvXp.

\ΩpsS ÿm]\ßfnte°v hnhn[  D¬]∂ßƒ
hmßphm\p≈ kwhn[m\Øns‚  LS\ BsI
]cnjvIcn®p. hnhn[ Xeßfn¬ IqSnbmtemN\
Ifpw s\tKmjntbj\pw \SØn a‰v ÿm]\ß
fnse hneIfpambn XmcXayw \SØn D¬]∂ßƒ
hmßp∂ coXnbmWv D≠m°nbn´p≈Xv. CXv ]e
hkvXp°fpw hne°pdhn¬ e`n°m≥ klmbn®n
´p≠v.  acp∂v Iº\nIƒ°pw tUmŒ¿am¿°pw a‰v
Poh\°m¿°pap≈ ]WanS]mSpIƒ  ]q¿Æambn
UnPn‰¬  B°nbn´p≠v. sN°pIƒ A]q¿Δamtb
D]tbmKn°p∂p≈q.

\mev Bip]{XnIfptSbpw Hm∏tdj≥kv,
ss^\m≥kv, Izmfn‰n F∂nhbpsS AhtemI\
ao‰nßpIƒ F√m amkhpw \SØn {]iv\
]cnlmcßfpw \hoIcWßfpw ]Xnhmbn
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\SØnhcp∂p≠vv.

aq∂v Bip]{XnIfnepw ^m¿akn sF.]n.
tÃm¿ Bcw`n®v GST bn¬  KWyambn Hcp XpI
\ap°v Xncn®v e`n°p∂ \S]Sn {Iaßƒ Cu
h¿jw \nehn¬ h∂p. ^m¿akn hn¬]\
GXm≠v Cc´ntbmfw h¿≤n®p. tcmKnIƒ
\ΩpsS ̂ m¿aknbn¬  \n∂pw acp∂v hmßm≥
\njvI¿jn°msXØs∂ \√ tkh\hpw hnebn
fhpw t{]cWbpw \¬In hn¬]\ h¿≤n∏n°m≥
\ap°v Ign™p.

tlmkv]n‰¬ em_nepw Cu h¿jw KWyamb
am‰ßƒ h∂n´p≠v. sa®s∏´ Imcy{Iaßƒ
sSÃv FSp°m\pw ̂ eßƒ \¬Ip∂Xnepap≈
thKX h¿≤n∏n®p. dntbP‚pIfpsS D]tbmK
Øn¬ kq£vaX ]pe¿ØpIbpw \nc¥c
hnet]ieneqsS AhbpsS hne Ipd°m\pw
Aßns\ em_ns‚ NnehpIƒ ]camh[n
Ipd°m\pw Ign™p.

CØcw {]h¿Ø\ßƒ NnIn’m Nnehv
h¿≤n∏n°msX Imcy£aX h¿≤n∏n®Xp
sIm≠mWp≠mbXv. \ΩpsS kv{Sm‰Pn°v
amt\P¿am¿ CXn¬ henb ]¶v hln®n´p≠v.
25˛30% CXv hgn \ap°v hcpam\w h¿≤n∏n°m≥
Ign™p.

Npcp°Øn¬ Ign™ c≠v h¿jw sIm≠v
\ΩpsS Bip]{Xnbn¬ s{]m^j\enkw hf¿
Øm\pw GXm≠v F√m hn`mKßfpw Hcp  ]pXnb
ImgvN∏mtSmsS ]p\:kwLSn∏n°m\pw  Ign™n
´p≠v. CXv tkh\ cwKØpw KpW\nehmc
Ønepw Db¿∂ \nehmcw ]pe¿Øm≥

km[yambn´p≠v.  AtXmsSm∏w ]¿t®kv ss{]kv
Ipd°m\pw Hm∏tdj≥ NnehpIƒ Ipd°m\pw
klmbn®n´p≠v.

_m¶v CS]mSpIfn¬ \mw ]pe¿Øp∂ \njvI¿j
\ap°v kmºØnI CS]mSpIfn¬  hfsc \√
FIvtÃ¿jW¬ td‰v In´m≥  klmbn®n´p≠v. CXv
`mhnbn¬ \ap°v hcp∂ kmºØnI \nt£]ß
sf KpWIcambn _m[n°pw.

t\csØ kqNn∏n®Xpt]mse CXpt]mep≈
ÿm]\ßsf t_m[]q¿Δw ImtemNnXamb
hnIk\Øn\pw A]v{KtUj\pw hnt[bam°n
bns√¶n¬ UoP\td‰v sNbvXpt]mIphm\p≈
km[yX \ne\n¬°p∂p≠v. \mw ]pXnb hnIk\
Øn\p≈  CuIzn‰n ^≠pIƒ°v {iaw XpSßnbn
cn°p∂p. t\csØ  hniZoIcn®  \S]Sn {Iaßfpw
Imcy£aXbpw AXns‚ `mKamWv.  AtXmsSm∏w
IqSpX¬ kmºØnI A®S°hpw \mw  t\SnsbSp
t°≠n hcpw. hcp∂  A©v h¿jØn\p≈n¬
aq∂nc´n hf¿®bmWv \mw e£yanSp∂Xv.  AXn\p≈
{iaßfmWv amt\Pvsa‚ v kzoIcn®p sIm≠n
cn°p∂Xv.

2001 PqWn¬ {]h¿Ø\w Bcw`n® Zb Bip]{Xn
23 h¿jsØ anI® tkh\w ]q¿Ønbm°n 24˛mw
h¿jØnte°v {]thin®ncn°p∂p.  Bip]{Xn
hnIk\Øns‚ Hmtcm L´Ønepw \ΩtfmsSm∏w
\n∂ Bip]{Xn Poh\°m¿, Hmlcn DSaIƒ,
klmbn°pIbpw klIcnbv°pIbpw sNbvX
hnhn[hIp∏pIƒ, cmjv{Sob, kmaqly, s]mXp
{]h¿ØI¿, k∂≤ kwLS\m {]h¿ØI¿,
A`ypZbImw£nIƒ XpSßn HmtcmcpØtcbpw
\μn]q¿Δw kvacn°p∂p.

Ub-d-IvS¿ t_m¿Un-\p-th-≠n,

tUm. hn.-sI. A_vZpƒ A okv

                      amt\-PnwKv Ub-d-IvS¿

tUm.Sn.sI. cho{μ≥

          Ub-d-IvS¿

XnøXn :   04/07/2024
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To the Members of
DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the ‘state of affairs’ of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
and its ‘profits’ and its ‘cash flows’ for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of The Companies Act 2013,
we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the
matters stated in paragraph (viii) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
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c. The accounts of the branch have been audited by us and have been dealt with in the
preparation of our report.

d. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

e. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

f. With respect to the comments/remarks relating to the maintenance of the accounts
and other connected matters therein, refer to our comments in paragraph (viii) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014.

g. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

h.   With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that, in our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its Directors during the year under report is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure ‘B’; and

j. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with  Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its
financial position (refer Note No. 19 of financial statements and Note No. 28(9)
of the Notes to the accounts);

ii) The Company does not have any long-term contracts requiring a provision for
material foreseeable losses.

iii) During the year under report, the Company has transferred the following
amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:

iv)   The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiums or any other
sources or kinds of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether

Sl No.    Particulars Period          Amount - Rs. `
1 Un-claimed Dividend F.Y 2015-16 32,000
2 Final Dividend F.Y 2022-23 28,000
3 Interim Dividend F.Y 2023-24 28,000
4 Interest on Debentures F.Y 2015-16 15,866

Total 1,03,866

________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________
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For V.VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

(Sd/-)

V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
PARTNER (M No. 70112)

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the  Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v)    The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding
parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the  Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

vi)     Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused
them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

vii)    Dividend declared/paid during the year under report by the Company is as per the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

viii)   Reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, is
applicable from April 1, 2023.

      Based on our examination, which included test checks, and on the basis of
information and explanations given to us, the Company has used accounting
software (Grandis) for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the audit trail facility was not
operational from April 1, 2023 up to October 20, 2023 and audit trail facility was
operational only with effect from October 21,2023 for all the relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the
accounting software for the period from October 21, 2023 onwards.

Place:  Thrissur
Date:  July 4, 2024
UDIN: 24070112BKJQDK6044 
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V. VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

‘Aiswarya’, Kottil Valappil Lane
Adjacent to CPI office
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Phone: 0487- 2389071; 2389072

Fax – 0487 – 2389073
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(i) In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, by which all Property, plant and equipments are verified in a phased manner. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its property, plant and equipment. Pursuant to such program,
Property, plant and equipment has been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of
the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. In respect of certain immovable properties,
we were informed that the title deeds have been deposited with the bankers for availing
loans. The Company has obtained confirmation from the bankers in this respect as per the
sanction letter of the loan disbursed.

(d)During the year under report, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right to Use assets) or intangible assets or both.

(e)In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of its inventories:
(a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the inventory has been physically verified

by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate and as informed to us, no
discrepancies of 10 % or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noted on
such verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crore in aggregate, from banks
on the basis of security of current assets. We are informed that no returns/statements in
respect of current assets have been filed by the Company with the bankers during the year
under report.

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

For the year ended March 31, 2024
(referred to in our report of even date)

[As per Para 3 and 4 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020]
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(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year under report,
the Company has granted unsecured loan to a Company in which the Directors are interested,
which has been fully repaid during the year under report. During the year under report the
Company has also made investments in equity shares in a Company in which the Directors
are interested. During the year under report, the Company has not provided any guarantee or
securities to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties.

(A) The details of aggregate balance outstanding and yearend balance outstanding in respect of
loan given to the Company in which the Directors are interested are:

Sl.No Name of the party

Daya Emergency Care
Private Limited – a
company in which the
Directors are interested

Aggregate  amount
of loan granted
during the year –
Rs.in lakhs

Year end balance
outstanding –
Rs. in lakhs

Year end balance
outstanding
(previous year)-
Rs. in lakhs

Nil (the loan of
Rs. 69.07 lakhs is

fully repaid during the
year under report)

(B)  During the year under report, the Company has not provided any loans or advances in the
nature of loans or guarantees or securities to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the terms and
conditions of the grant of the above-mentioned loan and the investments in equity shares
made in the Company in which the Directors are interested are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.
(c) The above-mentioned loan advanced to the Company in which the Directors are interested
is fully repaid during the year under report. Interest is charged/ recovered on the loan advanced.
(d) Since the above-mentioned loan is repayable on demand, there is no overdue amount.
Interest is charged/ recovered on the loan advanced
(e) During the year under report, no loan or advances in the nature of loans have fallen due or
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans
given to the same parties and hence paragraph 3 (iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
(f) During the year under report, the Company has granted loan to a Company in which the
Directors are interested (related party) which is repayable on demand. The aggregate amount
of loan outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is ‘ Nil (previous year Rs. 32.75 lakhs) which
represents Nil % (previous year 100%) of the loans advanced by the Company (excluding
trade advance given).

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
under report, the Company has granted loans to a Company in which the Directors are interested
and also made investments in equity shares of a company in which the directors are interested

36.32 32.75
1
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which is in compliance with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
amount of loan given and investments made are within the limits specified in that section. The
loan given to the Company in which the Directors are interested as per the provisions of Section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been subsequently approved/ratified by way of a special
resolution passed by the Company in the general meeting held in the month of August 2023.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from public and therefore the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and its rules are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
engaged in the business of running a Hospital and maintenance of cost records has been
specified by the Central Government of India under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As informed to us, the Company has maintained such accounts and
records as per this section. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a)  According to records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess, and other statutory dues,
where ever applicable, have been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities, though there are slight delays in remittances of TDS and GST dues but there
are no material arrears that were outstanding as on March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no disputed dues in
respect of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods and Service Tax
(GST) that has not been deposited on account of any dispute. The details of disputed
dues in respect of provident fund and income tax are given below:

(i) The Company has received a Notice of demand from the Income Tax Assessing Officer,
Thrissur, demanding an amount of Rs.399.36 lakhs, for the A.Y. 2017-18. The Company
has e-filed an appeal against this tax demand before the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals), NFAC, Delhi, which is pending for disposal.

(viii) As per the information and explanation given to us, during the year under report, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961, and accordingly, paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender and accordingly paragraph 3 (ix) (a) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institutions, bankers, and government or
debenture holders during the year.
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(c) During the year under report, the Company has raised term loan from bank to finance the
acquisition of a new hospital (including land, hospital building and medical equipment) and the
loan was applied for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financials statements of the company, we report that no
funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term purpose by the company. Certain
items of fixed assets have been purchased from out of the working capital loans availed by the
Company, which is within the sanctioned limit of the bankers.
(e) During the year under report, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
(f) During the year under report, the Company has not raised any loans on the pledge of the
securities held by its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year.
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and accordingly,
the sub-clause (b) of paragraph 3 (x) are not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year under report, no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported.
(b) During the year under report, as informed to us, there is no requirement of filing Form ADT
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.
(c) As informed to us, during the year under report, the Company has not received any whistle-
blower complaint

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements of the Company as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Even though the Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not conducted any NBFC activities accordingly paragraph 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company
(c) According to the examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI, and accordingly
paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xvii)The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under the report and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) During the year under report, there has been no resignation of statutory auditors and
accordingly, paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date;

(xx) (a) According to the examination of the records of the Company and information and explanation
given to us, the Company has spent full amount towards CSR obligation as mandated by
section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 amounting to Rs. 19.46 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 15.36 lakhs).
(b) As informed to us, there are no unspent amount towards CSR and hence paragraph 3(xx)
is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
prepare a Consolidated Financial Statement and accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

For V.VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

(Sd/-)

V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
PARTNER (M No. 70112)

Place: Thrissur
Date:  July 4, 2024

UDIN: 24070112BKJQDK6044 
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DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL
LIMITED as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note on audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the standards on
auditing (the ‘Standards’) issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

V. VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

‘Aiswarya’, Kottil Valappil Lane
Adjacent to CPI office

Kottapuram Road, Thrissur – 680 004
Phone: 0487- 2389071; 2389072

Fax – 0487 – 2389073
E-mail: office@vvgandassociates.com
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For V.VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

(Sd/-)

    V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
    PARTNER (M No. 70112)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note issued
by the ICAI.

V. VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

‘Aiswarya’, Kottil Valappil Lane
Adjacent to CPI office

Kottapuram Road, Thrissur – 680 004
Phone: 0487- 2389071; 2389072

Fax – 0487 – 2389073
E-mail: office@vvgandassociates.com

Place:  Thrissur
Date: July 4, 2024
UDIN:  24070112BKJQDK6044
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DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOLLOWED AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE – 28

Brief Note on Company:

Daya General Hospital Limited (CIN U85110KL1977PLC002877) is an unlisted public limited company
incorporated on January 24, 1977 having its registered office located at Viyyur, Thrissur, Kerala
State, engaged in health care/medical services business.

The Company is having Hospitals located at Viyyur, Thrissur (250 beds) and also a branch at Palakkad
(50 beds).

During the year under report, the Company has started a hospital (130 beds) located at Kunnamkulam,
with effect from December 1, 2023 by purchasing the land, hospital building and medical equipment
of M/s Royal Hospital, Kunnamkulam.

Significant Accounting Policies followed in the preparation of the financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles, Accounting Standards specified in Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.The company follows mercantile
system of accounting and recognises significant items of income and expenditure on accrual basis.

The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 notified under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to a Small and Medium Sized
Company.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/Non-Current
classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is:
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading/services;
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period;

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is Current when it is:
a) Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading/services;
c) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;



Annual Report - 2023-24

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Based on the nature of the product and activities, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of the contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of the income and expenditure for the year.  Actual results
could differ from these estimates. Any revision in the accounting estimates is recognized in the
period in which the results are known/materialized.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from hospital services rendered is recognized on completion of the services and to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue from sale of medicines is recognized on despatch/delivery of the
medicines to the patients, which is when the risks and rewards of the ownership pass to the patients/
buyers. Interest income on fixed deposits with banks are recognized on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount of deposit outstanding and the rate of interest as applicable to the
deposit. Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis based on the duration of the rental
term/agreement. Hospital Stores items and consumables are charged to the Profit and Loss account
at the time of purchase.

Inventories:

Inventories consists of pharmaceutical items/medicines and x-ray films.
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost, in respect of pharmaceuticals
items and x-ray films pertaining to Out Patients (OP) includes basic cost of purchase excluding
GST (Input Tax Credit) and in respect of In Patients (IP) includes basic purchase cost including
GST, and is valued as per the FIFO method.

Hospital /Cath lab/Stores/Lab chemicals consumables are expensed off in the year of purchase.

Cash Flow:

Cash Flow statement is reported using the ‘indirect method’, where by the profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of the transactions of a non-cash nature and deferrals and accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income and expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheques/drafts in
hand, balances with bank and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts/borrowings are shown in current liabilities in
the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow statement.
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Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets and Depreciation/amortization:

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost (including re-valued amount in respect of land) less
depreciation/amortization. Cost consists of basic cost of purchase (including taxes and duties) and
other costs incurred in bringing the assets for their intended use. Cost also includes the capital work
in progress allocated to the Property, plant and equipment on completion of the construction and the
assets being ready for its intended use. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization.

Property, Plant and Equipment includes property, plant and equipment purchased from M/s Royal
Hospital, Kunnamkulam, and are valued at the agreement value including stamp duty and registration
cost, as per the Sale Deed executed by the Company with the erstwhile owners of M/s Royal Hospital,
Kunnamkulam.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use as on the date of the Balance Sheet are
disclosed as ‘Capital work in progress’ and are valued at cost. Cost includes basic cost of purchase
of construction materials and all expenses related to and incidental to the construction of such assets.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on a Written down value Method
based on its useful life, as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to the
enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule II, depreciation on assets has been provided
based on the estimated useful lives of fixed assets given below:-
-

Depreciation on intangible assets being computer software is amortized based on its estimated
useful life which is determined as 3 years by the Management.

Depreciation on additions/sales during the year is calculated on pro-rata basis. Depreciation on
property, plant and equipment purchased from M/s Royal Hospital, Kunnamkulam, are provided based
on the remaining estimated useful life as determined by the Management from the date of the property,
plant and equipment being put to commercial use

Investments:

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year are classified
as current investments and are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. All the other investments
are classified as long term non-current investments and are valued at cost.

Sl.No Particulars        Estimated useful life (in years)
1. Medical Equipments 13
2. Computer & Peripherals 3
3. General Hospital Equipments 15
4. Furniture & Fixtures 10
5. Computer Software 3
6. Cathlab Equipments 13
7. Building 60
8. Electrical Fittings & Equipments 10

_________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Investment in equity share of a group company is stated at cost of acquisition.

Retirement Benefits:

i. Defined contribution plan – Company’s contribution during the year to Provident Fund and
ESIC is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

ii. Defined Benefit plan – Gratuity – The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a
defined benefit plan, covering all eligible employees, and gratuity expense, calculated on
actuarial basis is recognized as an expense and charged to the statement of profit and
loss. Actuarial value of the accrued liability has been arrived at by using the ‘Projected
Accrued Benefit’ method (Projected Unit Credit Method (PUCM) with control period of one
year). Under this method, the gratuity liability is determined actuarially, by calculating the
expected future cash flows in respect of each individual employee by the application of a
multiple decrement table which takes into account the exists by way of normal age-
retirement, earlier death while in service, and other premature withdrawals.
Then the present value of these expected payments is arrived at, using an appropriate
rate of discount and added up. The amount of accrued benefits is computed with reference
to the service put in by each employee till the date of valuation as also the emoluments as
at that date. The actuarial value of past service gratuity liability is computed with reference
to the service put in by each employee till the date of valuation as also the projected
terminal salary at the time of the exit. Actuarial gain/loss is also charged to the statement
of profit and loss.

iii. Leave encashment: There is no policy of encashment of leave and hence no provision is
made towards the same.

iv. Other short term employee benefits like salary/wages/allowances etc., that are wholly
payable within twelve months of the render of the services of the employees are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is recognised as an expense during the period
when the employees render the services.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs that is directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as
part of the acquisition cost. Qualifying assets are those assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure for the period
in which it is incurred and debited to the Profit and Loss account.

Related Party Disclosure:

a) The Key Managerial Person is Prof. K.P. Ahammed Koya Director/Chairman (expired on June
3, 2024) and Dr V K Abdul Azeez, Managing Director. Mr T K Raveendran is appointed as the
Chairman with effect from June 7, 2024.

b) The details of transactions with the related party are given below:
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Managerial
Remuneration –
Rs. in lakhs

18.00
(P.Y. 12.00)

36.00
(P.Y. 24.00)

18.00
P.Y. (12.00)

18.00
(P.Y. 12.00)

18.00
(P.Y. 12.00)

18.00
(P.Y. 12.00)

17.65
(P.Y. 12.00)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

143.65

96.00

Name of  Directors

Prof. K P Ahammed Koya
– Chairman

Dr V K Abdul Azeez
– Managing Director

Dr Fazil Abubacker
– Director

Abdul Jebbar MM
– Director

A K Shamsudeen
– Director

Fathima M M
– Director

P Abdul Razak
– Director

Dr. Mukesh Mukundan
– Director

Ummar Ammu

Sujeer VV

Dr T K Ravindran

Noushad KB

Mohammed Abdul
Rahiman

Dr Saheer Naduvanchery

Abdul Jabbar P B

Thrivikraman P C

TOTAL

Previous year

Debenture
interest -
Rs.in lakhs

Nil

0.32
(P.Y.0.32)

0.32
(P.Y 0.32)

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

0.32
(P.Y.0.32)

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

Nil

0.32
(P.Y.0.32)

Nil

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

0.32
(P.Y.0.32)

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

0.32
(P.Y. 0.32)

Nil

Nil

3.52

3.52

Professional
fees -
Rs.in lakhs

Nil

187.78
(P.Y. 120.01)

133.07
(P.Y. 110.43)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

39.50
(P.Y. 35.75)

Nil

Nil

48.73
(P.Y. 28.45)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

409.08

294.65

Sitting Fees -
Rs. in lakhs

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.45
(P.Y. 0.40)

0.60
(P.Y. 0.40)

0.50
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.30
(P.Y. 0.40)

0.30
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.30
(P.Y. 0.50)

0.30
(P.Y. 0.20)

0.20
(P.Y. Nil)

8.05

6.90

S l .
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

i. Details of payments made to Directors:
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         Related party

Daya Charitable Trust- in
which the directors are
interested

Daya Charitable Trust- in
which the directors are
interested
Daya Charitable Trust- in
which the directors are
interested

Daya Emergency Care
Hospital Private Limited
– a Company in which the
Directors are interested

Daya Emergency Care
Hospital Private Limited
– a Company in which the
Directors are interested

Daya Emergency Care
Hospital Private Limited
– a Company in which the
Directors are interested

Mr Rasheeq – relative of
Chairman

Daya Food Mall- A concern in
which a director is interested.

ii. Other payments to Related Parties:

Sl Nature of payment
No.

1 Dialysis charges
paid of patients

2 Donation Paid

3 CSR Expenditure

4 Advance given
(yearend balance)

5 Interest received

6 Investment in Equity
Shares

7 Payment to
contractor

8 Canteen Rent
Received

Amount 2023-24
Rs. in lakhs

29.28
(subsequently recovered
and year-end balance is

Nil)

Nil

8.63

Nil
(Rs 36.32 lakhs

advance given in FY
2023 -24 fully

recovered along with
opening balance of

Rs 32.75 lakhs)

0.40

37.50

85.15

23.21

Amount 2022-23 Rs.
in lakhs

21.29
(subsequently

recovered and year-
end balance is Nil)

0.45

4.69

32.75

2.32

31.25

10

22.01

Accounting for foreign currency transaction:
a) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on

the date of transactions.
b) Exchange difference arising on restatement of assets and liabilities as on the Balance sheet date

and on settlement of foreign currency transactions are charged to Profit and Loss account.

Accounting for Taxes on Income:
Income Tax debited to Statement of Profit & Loss comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred
Tax resulting from “timing difference” between book and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax
rates enacted as on the balance Sheet date.  The Deferred Tax Asset is recognised and carried
forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in the
future.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities/Assets:
Provision is made for all known liabilities existing as on the balance sheet date that probably requires
an outflow of resources of the company and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Contingent liabilities, if any, are not provided for in the accounts but disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, when the company has a possible obligation and it is probable that a cash flow will
not be required to settle the obligation. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Impairment of Assets:
The company assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication of an asset being
impaired. If such an indication exists, and the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Segment Reporting:
Based on the principles given in Accounting Standard – 17 “Segment Reporting” the company has
only one reporting segment, viz., ‘Hospital Activities’. The entire activities of the company are within
the district of Thrissur, Kerala.

Leases – Operating lease –
Lease rental income in respect of a premise given on lease is recognized as an income on a straight
line basis based on the duration of the lease rental term. The company does not have any operating
lease expense.

Earnings per Share (EPS):

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2023-24.

1. The Company has re-classified/regrouped the previous years’ figures wherever necessary to
suit current years’ presentation.

2. During the year under report, the Company has purchased the existing land, building and
equipment of M/s Royal Hospital, Kunnamkulam, for a total consideration of Rs. 35 crore, out
of which Rs.20.125 crore is towards land value Rs.13.875 crore is towards the value of the
building cost and the balance Rs.1 core is towards the value of equipment purchased/taken
over from M/s Royal Hospital, Kunnamkulam.

3. During the year under report, the Company has availed a term loan from M/s South Indian
Bank Limited for an amount of Rs.34.50 crore to finance the above acquisition.

Sl No.

1

2

3

4

Particulars

Net Profit after tax available for  Equity
share holders (Numerator used for
calculation)

Average Number of Equity shares
(Denominator used for calculation) -
Numbers

Basic Earnings per Share - Rs.

Face value per Equity share - Rs.

2023-24
Rs.in lakhs

1,130.69

42 ,522

2,659.06

1,000

2022-23
Rs. in lakhs

805.73

42,522

1,894.81

1,000
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4. During the year under report, the Company has paid an amount of Rs. 6.25 lakhs (previous
year Rs. 6.25 lakhs) being call money towards application of equity shares in M/s Daya
Emergency Care Private Limited. The total investments made by the Company in the equity
shares of M/s Daya Emergency Care Private Limited as at March 31, 2024 is Rs.37.50 lakhs
(375,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each) which represents about 12.45% (previous year 11%)
of its paid up equity share capital and accordingly, M/s Daya Emergency Care Private Limited
is not considered as an Associate as per Accounting Standard 23.

5. In the opinion of the Directors, the current assets, loans and advances have the value at
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

6. The number of employees who are in receipt of Rs.102 lakhs per annum or Rs. 850,000/- per
month as remuneration   - NIL.

7. Expenditure/outflow in foreign currency during the year under report Rs. Nil (previous year Nil)

8. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for in the accounts –  Rs.24.76 lakhs  (previous year Rs.5.10 lakhs (approximately) in respect
of the generator substation work and Rs.2.4 lakhs in respect of CT/MRI front area work
proposed  addition/expansion of its medical facilities by adding new rooms/wards/medical
procedures and facilities)

9. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts/Contingent Liabilities:

i.  The Company has received a Notice of demand from the Income Tax Assessing Officer,
Thrissur, demanding an amount of Rs. 399.36 lakhs for the A.Y. 2017-18. The Company
has e-filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), NFAC, Delhi,
against this tax demand, which is pending for disposal. The Company is advised that
it has strong case in its favour and that the tax demand is expected to be substantially
reduced/dropped in the appeal proceedings. Accordingly, no provision is considered
necessary by the Management.

10.During the year under report, the Company has paid an amount of Rs.62.02 lakhs against the
notice received from Assistant Provident Fund Commissioner, Kochi and accordingly the PF
demand stands fully paid by the company.

11.Trade payables/current liabilities, trade receivables, insurance debtors and advances/deposits
are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from the respective parties. Trade Receivables
consist of amounts receivables from Central Government institutions viz., ESIC & ECHS,
which are outstanding for more than 3 years, amounting to Rs. 277.71 lakhs. In the opinion
of the Management, these amounts will be recovered ultimately and hence no provision is
considered necessary against the same.

12.The company has received intimation from the trade payables regarding their status under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) Development Act, 2006. As per the information
obtained from the Management, MSME payables consist of Rs. 38.59 lakhs (previous year
Rs. 42.60 lakhs), out of which an amount of Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 2.95 lakhs) is MSME
dues outstanding for more than 45 days. No amounts are paid/payable towards interest
under the said statute in the opinion of the Management.

13. Value of imported raw materials, stores and components consumed - Nil (Previous year Rs
Nil). Value of indigenous stores/instruments/films consumed during the year Rs. 373.19 lakhs
(previous year Rs. 369.92 lakhs), and value of indigenous raw materials (medicines/lab
materials consumed during the year Rs. 3,178.29 lakhs (previous year Rs. 2,545.59 lakhs).
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14. Disclosures as per Accounting Standard – 15  - Employee Benefits (Revised 2005):
a. Defined Contribution Plan recognized as an expense for the year is as under:

i. Employers contribution to PF – Rs.171.35 lakhs (previous year Rs..150.84 lakhs);
ii. Employers contribution to ESIC & Labour welfare fund  –Rs. 7.71 lakhs (previous

year Rs.9.67 lakhs);
b. Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity – During the year under report, the

company has also carried out an actuarial valuation of gratuity liability in respect of its
eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related
service cost is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. Net actuarial gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company has dis-continued the Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme with LIC of
India .

c. Other Long term benefits – encashment of earned leave – Rs Nil (during the year
under report, as per the decision of the management, there is no policy of encashment of
earned leave. (Previous year Rs. Nil).

d. Additional disclosures as per AS – 15 –

Sl No.                        Particulars

1 Present value  of obligation – opening balance
2 Interest cost
3 Current service cost
4 Benefits paid
5 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations
6 Past service cost
7 Present value of obligation – year end
8 Ending Asset
9 Salary escalation rate - %
10 Discount rate
11 Actuarial gain/(loss) to be recognized in P&L

Amount recognised in Balance sheet:
12 Present value of obligations – Yearend balance
13 Ending Asset
14 Funded status (asset/(liability)

Net asset/(liability) recognized in
balance sheet – refer Note 5 & 9
Expense recognized: Statement of P&L:

15 Current service cost
16 Interest cost
17 Expected return on plan assets
18 Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized
19 Net expenses charged to P & L – refer Note 23

415.78
34.98
50.53

(72.58)
36.43

Nil
465.14

Nil
4%

7.23%
(36.43)

465.14
Nil

(465.14)
(465.14)

50.53
34.98

Nil
36.43

121.94

400.14
32.12
46.04

(77.14)
14.62

Nil
415.78

Nil
4%

7.50%
(14.62)

415.78
Nil

(415.78)
(415.78)

46.04
32.12

Nil
14.62
92.78

 ___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________

2022-23
Rs. in lakhs

2023-24
  Rs. in lakhs
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The above disclosures are based on the information provided in the Actuarial valuation report of an
independent Actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

15. Salary and Allowances includes Rs. 36 lakhs (previous year Rs. 24.00 lakhs) paid to Managing
Director towards Managerial remuneration; Rs.18 lakhs (previous year Rs.12.00 lakhs) being
remuneration to the Chairman and Rs..89.65 lakhs (previous year Rs..60.00 lakhs) being
remuneration to Whole time directors.

16. During the year under report, no amount (previous year Nil) has been transferred to ‘Debenture
Redemption Reserve (DRR) account under Section 71 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
since the aggregate DRR outstanding as at year end is adequate as per the rate prescribed
in the MCA circular dated February 11, 2013. During the year under report, the company has
transferred an amount of Rs.. Nil (previous year Rs.312.54 lakhs) from DRR to the Profit and
Loss A/c. The year-end balance of DRR is Rs..150.26 lakhs (previous year Rs.150.26 lakhs)
and the value of the Debentures outstanding as at yearend is Rs.485.80 lakhs (previous year
Rs..500.85 lakhs).

17. During the year under report, debentures amounting to Rs.15.05 lakhs (previous year Rs.6.45
lakhs) were redeemed and no debentures re-issued in current year under report. (previous
year Nil).

18. During the year under report, the Company has paid final dividend for preceding financial
year 2022-23 amounting to Rs..297.65 lakhs and interim dividend for the current financial
year 2023-24 amounting to Rs.297.69 lakhs (previous year interim dividend paid Rs.595.31
lakhs pertaining to F.Y. 2022-23) from out of the net profits earned by the Company. During
the year under report, an amount of Rs..161.06 lakhs (previous year Rs..80.57 lakhs) being
10% of the net profit for the year under report have been transferred from Profit & Loss to
Reserves account as decided by the Management.

19. Since the Net Profit of the Company as per section 198 of the Companies Act 2013 exceeds
Rs.5 crore, provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) becomes applicable and
consequently the Company has spent, during the year under report, an amount of Rs.19.46
lakhs being 2% of the average net profit earned during the three immediately preceding
financial years (previous year Rs.15.36 lakhs).

20. The deferred tax liability as on March 31, 2024 comprises of the tax effect of depreciation on
fixed assets amounting to Rs..134.92 lakhs (previous year Rs.106.12 lakhs).The deferred
tax asset as on March 31, 2024 comprises of the tax effect of gratuity provision disallowed
under income tax rules and tax effect of unabsorbed depreciation allowances amounting to
Rs.117.07 lakhs (previous yearRs.104.64 lakhs)

21.During the year under report , the company has obtained credit rating from CARE Limited
with rating of CARE A3 for bank overdraft facility and rating CARE BBB- (Stable).

22. Events occurring after Balance Sheet date: The Board of Directors has proposed a final
dividend of Rs.297.65 lakhs in respect of F.Y. 2023-24 subject to the approval of the
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Date:  July 4, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

(Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
PARTNER (M No. 70112)

Vide our Report of even date attached:

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting which is based on the relevant share
capital as on March 31, 2024. The actual dividend amount will be depended on the relevant
share capital outstanding as on the record date.

23 .Mandatory rounding off: During the year under report, pursuant to the requirements of the
amended Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, the figures in the financial statements are
disclosed in rupees in lakhs rounded to two decimal points.

(Sd/-)

1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN
(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)

2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120

Date: July 4, 2024
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Remarks

Title deeds of all immovable properties as
appearing in the books are held in Company’s name

During the year under report, no revaluation of
Property, Plant & Equipments has been made

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED

        Particulars Current Year 2023-24 Previous Year 2022-23
        Type of Borrower Amount % of Amount % of

Outstanding Total Outstanding Total

4 Capital Work-in-Progress(CWIP) ageging schedule/completion schedule:
Ageing schedules of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) separately given.

5 Intangible assets under development ageging schedule/completion schedule:
As at the end of the financial year under report, the  Company does not have any
Intangible assets under development or projects temporarily suspended

6 Details of Benami Property held:
As at end of the financial year under report, the Company does not hold any
Benami Property

7 Security of Current Assets against borrowings:
During the year under report, the Company has availed Overdraft facility.
against the security of current assets, viz., inventory stock, trade receivables.

i No quarterly returns or statements of current assets are filed by the Compay with the Banks during the

year under report.

ii Details of reconciliation/reasons for material discrepancies are given below:

Quarter ended & Name of bank

Not Applicable

Particulars of
Security
provided

N.A.

Amount
as
per books

N.A.

Amount as
reported in
returns

N.A.

Difference

N.A.

Reasons

N.A

Sl # Particulars

1 Title deeds of immovable property not held
in Companys name

2 Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment

3 Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP, etc

Note 30: Additional Regulatory Informations

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

i    Promoters               -           -              -             -
ii    Directors               -           -              -             -
iii    KMPs               -           -              -             -
iv    Related Parties               -           -         32.75 100%
v    Total               -           -         32.75 100%
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8 Wilful Defaulter:
During the year under report, the Company is not declared as a ‘Wilful Defaulter’ by any Banks or
Financial Institutions or other lenders.

9 Relationship with Struck off Companies:
During the year under report, the Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off
under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Sl # Particulars

10 Registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC

11 Compliance with number of layers of companies

12 Analytical Ratios

13 Compliance with approved Scheme of
Arrangements

14 Utilization of Borrowed Funds & share premium

Remarks

The Company has duly registered the Charges with
ROC and there are no instances of non-registration of
theCharges with ROC beyond the statutory period.
The satisfaction of charge is also registered with ROC
beyond 30 days but within 300 days.

The Company has complied with the number of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Separately given

During the year under report, there are no scheme of
Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under report, the Company has not
advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other
perons or entitties (‘Intermediaries’) not has it received
any funds from any persons or entities
(‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding that the
Company shall directrly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities

Additional information to Statement of Profit and Loss.

i Corporate Social Responsibility
1 Gross amount required to be spent during the year - Rs in lakhs          19.46
2 Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars Paid in cash Yet to be Total
paid

i Construction/acquisition of any asset               -           -   -

ii On purposes other than (i) above          19.46           -  19.46

3 Details of related party transactions, e.g.,contribution
to a trust  in which the Directors are interested - See note  below            8.63
Contribution to Daya Charitable Trust registered under 12A of Income Tax Act and also
registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs(MCA) for undertaking CSR activities.
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4 The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of
the amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year Not Applicable

5 The total of previous years’ shartfall amount Not Applicable

6 Brief reasons for the shortfall Not Applicable

7 Nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company Health care activities, First Aid
                                                                                                                          awareness, Poverty alleviation

8 Unspent amount in respect of other than on-going
projects, transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule
VII to the Act, as per Section 135 (5) of the Act Not Applicable

9 Unspent amount pursuant to any on-going projects,
transferred to special account as per Section 135(5). Not Applicable

Additional information to Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii Undisclosed Income
Details of transactions not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in any tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

b Previous un-recorded income and related assets
have been propery recorded in the books of account
duirng the year

iii Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

During the year under report, there are no un-disclosed
or surrendered income pursuant to any search, survey
or any other such proceedings as per the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

Not applicable.

Not applicable, since the Company has not traded or
invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the
year under report.

Date:  July 4, 2024
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Vide our report of even date attached :

Date:  July 4, 2024
For V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

         (Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
Partner (M.No. 070112)

(Sd/-)

1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN
(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)

2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120
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DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule - Refer Note 11.1

Trade Payables ageing schedule - Refer Note 7.1

Trade Receivables ageing schedule Refer note no. 15.1

Sl No. Particulars            Outstandings from due date of payment      Outstandings from due date of payment
Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

2 to 3
years

More than
3 years Total

i MSME
ii Others
iii Disputed

dues - MSME
iv Disputed

dues - Others

Total

Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

2 to 3
years

More than
3 years Total

As at Current Year ended March 31, 2024 As at Previous Year ended March 31, 2023

      38.59            -           -           -       38.59
    787.16        7.84       0.12           -     795.12
          -               -            -                  -            -
          -               -            -                  -            -

           -
          -               -            -                  -            -

   825.75       7.84       0.12                 -    833.71

(Amount Rs.in lakhs)

      42.60            -           -          -       42.60
          -   664.30           -          -   664.30
          -            -           -          -            -
          -            -           -          -            -

           -
          -            -           -          -            -

      42.60   664.30         -          -   706.90

Sl. Particulars
No.

           Outstandings from due date of payment      Outstandings from due date of payment

i        Undisputed Trade
Receivables -

a considered good
b considered doubtful

sub-total
ii Disputed Trade

Receivables -
a considered good
b considered doubtful

sub-total
Grand total

(Amount Rs.in lakhs)

Less
than
6 months

1 to 2
years Total

As at Current Year ended March 31, 2024

6 months
to 1year

2 to 3
years

More
than
3 years

Less
than
6 months

1 to 2
years Total

As Previous Year ended March 31, 2023

6 months
to 1year

2 to 3
years

More
than
3 years

247.08 36.51 24.53 52.91 277.71 638.74 320.26    211.74    53.64  282.32 -         867.96

247.08 36.51 24.53 52.91 277.71 638.74 320.26    211.74    53.64  282.32 -         867.96

- - - - - - - - - - -      -

- - - - - - - - - - -      -

247.08 36.51 24.53 52.91 277.71 638.74 320.26    211.74    53.64  282.32 -         867.96

Sl No. Particulars         Outstandings from due date of payment      Outstandings from due date of payment
Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

2 to 3
years

More than
3 years Total

i    Projects in
  Progress

ii   Projects
            temporarily

  suspended

Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

2 to 3
years

More than
3 years Total

As at Current Year ended March 31, 2024 As at Previous Year ended March 31, 2023

     33.77      -            -               -    33.77

          -      -            -                -       -
    33.77      -           -               -    33.77

     4.57             -             -           -   4.57

          -    -             -           -         -
      4.57    -             -           -      4.57

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)
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Vide our report of even date attached :
Date:  July 4, 2024
For V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

         (Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
Partner (M.No. 070112)

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT March 31st 2024

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023Sl
No. Particulars

I          EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds
a Share Capital 1                425.22                425.22
b Reserve and surplus 2             9,079.72              8,543.46

            9,504.94          8,968.68
(2) Non-current liabilities
a Long-term borrowings 3             3,404.15                500.85
b Other long term liabilities 4                  16.94                  16.94
c Deferred tax Liability - net                   17.85                    1.48
d Long term provisions 5                438.16                389.94

            3,877.10             909.21
(3) Current liabilities
a Short term borrowings 6                591.09                127.56
b Trade payables: Total outstanding dues of; 7

i) Micro enterprises and Small enterprises                   38.59                  42.60
ii) Creditors other than Micro & Small enterprises                 795.12                664.30

c Other current liabilities 8             1,374.34              1,175.40
d Short term provisions 9                  26.98                  25.85

            2,826.12          2,035.71
                                                          TOTAL           16,208.16        11,913.60

II                                  ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
a Property, Plant and Equipment:

i) Property, Plant and Equipment 10,11            13,937.28              9,517.92
ii) Intangible assets                   22.74                  22.85
iii) Capital work-in-progress                   33.77                    4.57

          13,993.79          9,545.34
b Non-current investments 12                  38.00                  31.50
c Other non-current assets 13                  99.92                137.92               134.94           166.44

          14,131.71          9,711.78
(2) Current assets
a Inventories 14                317.96                256.70
b Trade receivables 15                638.74                867.96
c Cash and bank balances 16             1,022.35              1,000.25
d Other current assets 17                  55.95                  41.84
e Short term loans and advances 18                  41.45                  35.07

            2,076.45          2,201.82
                                                           TOTAL           16,208.16        11,913.60
Contingent liabilities & commitments 19                 426.52              466.48
Notes to Accounts & Accounting Policies 28
Analytical Ratios 29
Additional Regulatory Informations               30

Note
 No. ‘ Rs. in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Date:  July 4, 2024
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

(Sd/-)
1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)
2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ

(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120
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DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
         STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 Current Year 2023-24. Previous Year
2022-23.Sl

No. Particulars Note
No.

    Income:
I Revenue from operations 20        14,645.00          12,103.40
II Other income 21            145.30               198.66
III Total Income ( I + II )      14,790.30     12,302.06

Pharmacy (medicines sales ) G P - %              43.49                44.03

IV Expenses:
a Purchase of X-Ray Films              21.58                15.70
b Purchase of Stores            186.36               271.87
c Purchase of of Cathlab consumables              31.07                30.78
d Purchase of Hospital consumables 22            137.13                51.27
e Purchase of Lab Chemicals            362.05               331.22
f Purchase of Medicine(net of returns)          2,874.57            2,236.39

                                3,612.76                                2,937.23
g Variations in inventories 23             (61.27)               (21.73)
h Employee benefits expenses 24          3,694.67            3,102.92
i Payment to doctors          3,091.03            2,458.67
j Finance costs 25            170.73               141.32
k Depreciation and amortization expense 26            759.18               722.88
l CSR Expenditure              19.46                15.36
m Operating & administrative expenses 27          1,984.92            1,871.15

                                9,658.72                                8,290.57
Total Expenses                   -      13,271.48                    -     11,227.80

V Profit before tax (III-IV)                   -        1,518.82                    -       1,074.26
VI Tax expense:
a Current tax            371.76               264.20
b Deferred tax              16.37                  4.33

388.13           268.53
VII Profit after tax for the year                   -        1,130.69                    -          805.73
VIII Earnings per equity share:
a Basic & Diluted 2,659.06 1,894.81

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Date:  July 4, 2024
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Vide our report of even date attached :

Date:  July 4, 2024
For V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

         (Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
Partner (M.No. 070112)

(Sd/-)
1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)
2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ

(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120
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NOTE - 1
    SHARE CAPITAL:
a) AUTHORIZED:
 75,000 Equity Shares of INR 1,000/- each                    750.00                    750.00

                   750.00                    750.00

b) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID:
42,522 Equity Shares of INR 1000/-  each Issued & Subscribed                    425.22                    425.22
 Amount of shares fully paid up                    425.22                    425.22
[42,522 equity shares of Rs 1,000 each fully paid up]
[previous year 42,522 equity shares of INR 1000 each fully paid up
c) Par value per share - Rs                      1,000                      1,000
d) Re-conciliation of outstanding equity shares:
    As at the beginning of the year - number of equity shares                    42,522                    42,522
    Add: Right shares issued                           -                           -
    Equity shares as at the end of the period - number of equity shares                    42,522                    42,522
e) The Company has one classes of shares - Equity
    Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share.
f) Equity shares held by the Holding Company,                           -                           -
g) Equity shares held each shareholder holding more than                           -                           -
    five per cent shares :
           i) Mr. Umar Ammu - number of equity shares held                      4,000                      4,000
              Percentage of equity shares held 9.41% 9.41%
           ii) Dr.V.K Abdul Azeez - number of equity shares held                      2,470                      2,470
              Percentage of equity shares held 5.81% 5.81%
           iii) Dr.Shaheer N - number of equity shares held                      2,470                      2,470
              Percentage of equity shares held 5.81% 5.81%
           iv)Mr.Ahammed Koya K.P - number of equity shares held                      2,440                      2,440
              Percentage of equity shares held 5.74% 5.74%
           v)Mr Abdul Jabbar P.B - number of equity shares held                      2,960                      2,960
              Percentage of equity shares held 6.96% 6.96%
h) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/
    commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment                           -                           -
i)  a) aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully
    paid up pursuant to contracts or arrangements without
    payment being received in cash;                           -                           -
    b) Aggregate number and the class of shares allotted as
    fully paid up by way of bonus shares                           -                           -
    c) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back
j) Terms of any securities convertible into equity/preference
   shares issued along with the earliest date of conversion                           -                           -
k) Calls unpaid (other than directors)                           -                           -
l) Forfeited shares - amount originally paid up                           -                           -
m) Shares held by Promoters:
i) Name of promoter:  Nil  Nil
No. of shares held - as at beginning of the year                           -                           -
No. of shares held - as at end of the year                           -                           -
% of total shares                           -                           -
% change during the year                           -                           -

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED

Notes attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

PARTICULARS

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs



Annual Report - 2023-24

NOTE  - 2
    RESERVE AND SURPLUS:
a) Securities Premium
    Opening balance b/fd                  4,016.34                  4,016.34
    Add/Less: Receipts for the year                           -                           -
    Less: Calls in arrears                           -                           -
    Closing balance carried forward                  4,016.34                  4,016.34
b) Debenture Redemption Reserve:
    Opening balance brought forward                    150.26                    462.80
    Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss account                           -                           -
    Less: Transfer to Profit & Loss account                           -                   (312.54)
    Closing balance carried forward                    150.26                    150.26
c) Revaluation Reserve: Opening balance brought forward                  3,723.02                  3,723.02
    Add/Less: Transfer for the year                           -
    Closing balance carried forward                  3,723.02                  3,723.02
d) Other Reserves - Statutory reserve:
    Opening balance brought forward                    213.99                    133.42
    Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss account                    113.07                      80.57
    Less: Transfer to Profit & Loss account for Dividend                           -                           -
    Closing balance carried forward                    327.06                    213.99
e) Surplus (Profit & Loss):
    Opening balance brought forward                    439.85                      56.99
    Add: Net Profit after tax for the year                  1,130.69                    805.71
    Add: Transfer from Reserves for Dividend                           -                           -
    Add: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve                           -                    312.54
    (Less)/Add: Tax provision adjustment                        0.91                    (59.51)
    Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve                           -                           -
    Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserves                   (113.07)                    (80.57)
    Less:  Dividends paid                   (595.34)                   (595.31)

                   863.04                    439.85
                                                                                GRAND TOTAL (a to e)                  9,079.72                  8,543.46

NOTE - 3
    LONG TERM BORROWINGS:
a) Debentures - Secured - 10 years secured  Non Convertible Debentures -                    483.65                    500.85
  48,580 (P.Y. 50,085) of Rs 1,000 each
[Rate of interest: 15%  p.a.]
  [Secured by EM by way of deposit of title deeds of land admeasuring
   1acre 84 cents situated in SurveyNo.7/part and 5/part at Peringavu
   Village,Trichur together with all buildings, existing and/or to be constructed
    there on in future, with first charge on SIB and with second charge in
    favour of the Trustees of  the Debenture holders]
Note: No continuing default in payment of principal & interest during the year.
During the financial year 2023-24, 1,505 debentures (P.Y. 645 debentures) of
Rs 1,000 each redemeed and Nil (P.Y. Nil) debentures were re-issued.
Maturity pattern:
In F.Y. 2024-25 Rs 2.15 lakhs; In F.Y. 2025-26 Rs 371.85 lakhs; In F.Y. 2026-27 Rs 70.95 lakhs;
In F.Y. 2027-28 Rs 36.55 lakhs; In F.Y. 2028-29 Rs 2.15 lakhs and In F.Y. 2030-31 Rs 2.15 lakhs.
Note: Debentures amounting to Rs 2.15 is maturing in F.Y. 2024-25 and accordingly, the Company
has maintained deposits with scheduled bank, free from charge or lien, during F.Y. 2023-24.

b) Term Loans from Banks:
i) From South Indian Bank Ltd - sanctioned limit Rs 34.50 crores.                  2,920.50                           -
Secured on hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other Fixed Asset created out of term loan.
EM of land and building as per details below:
Primary security:
i) Land admeasuring 68.64  ares along with building situated in Sy No 1112/7 /2/3/1
Situated in Kunnamkulam, Thrissur District.
Collateral security:
i) land measuring 184.94 cents along with hospital building in Sy No 7/part,
5/part situated in   Peringavu Village, Thrissur District. Second charge oncollateral security is available for
debenture issued by the company with outstanding balance of Rs 4.86 crore
as  on March 31, 2024
[Rate of interest as per sanction order: 8.40%  p.a.]
Maturity Pattern: Term Loan of Rs. 34.50 crores in repayable in 107 EMI of
Rs. 31,95,000 each
and final installment of Rs. 31,35,000. EMI commences from June 2024.
Interest to be serviced as and when debited.
No default in payment of interest during the year under report. Principal
payment is under moratorium period                  3,404.15                    500.85

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
PARTICULARS

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
:2:

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
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NOTE - 4
    OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
a) Security/Trade deposits received                      16.94                      16.94

                     16.94                      16.94

NOTE - 5
    LONG TERM PROVISIONS:
a) Gratuity - Net liability as per actuarial valuation                    438.16                    389.94

                   438.16                    389.94
NOTE - 6
    SHORT TERM BORROWINGS:
a) Loans repayable on demand:
 i)  From Banks: Overdraft from SIB Ltd - Secured -
[Hypothecation of available current assets of the company(present and future)                   212.46                    127.56
EM of commercial property (hospital property-door no:5/302)under
Sy No:7/part, 5/part with
149,589.61 Sq.ft building in peringavu Village, Thrissur Taluk,
Thrissur District in the name of the Company.
Sanction limit is Rs 800 lakhs (p.y. Rs 800 lakhs)[sub-limit
Rs 50 lakhs for Palakkad branch]
[Note: No default in payment of interest. The rate of interest as per the
sanction terms is 9.70% p.a.]

 ii)  From Bank: SIB A/c No 81.70- Palakkad                      28.63                           -
Sanction Limit: sub-limit of Rs. 50 Lakhs earmarked from
HO Thrissur OD limit Rs. 800 lakhs
[Note: No default in payment of interest. The rate of interest as per the
sanction terms is 9.70% p.a.]
Security - same as that for the OD limit of Rs 800 lakhs availed by Head Office.

iii) SIB O/D 0334081000000123- Kunnamkulam                      28.35                           -
Sanction Limit: sub-limit of Rs. 50 Lakhs earmarked from
HO Thrissur OD limit Rs. 800 lakhs
[Note: No default in payment of interest. The rate of interest as per the
sanction terms is 9.70% p.a.]
Security - same as that for the OD limit of Rs 800 lakhs availed
by Head Office.

b) Current maturities of long term debt                    321.65                           -

                   591.09                    127.56

NOTE - 7
TRADE PAYABLES:
Total outstanding dues of;
i) Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises; and                      38.59                      42.60
ii) Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises                    795.12                    664.30
[Refer Note 7.10 for age-wise analysis of Trade Payables]                    833.71                    706.90

NOTE - 8
    OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
a) Advance received from Insurance patients                      41.51                      12.74
b) Unpaid dividends                        7.79                        7.50
c) Workshop Income received in advance                        1.10                           -
d) Other Liabilities:
       i) Expenses/Liabilities Payable                    734.13                    567.53
       ii) Others: Creditors for Fixed Assets                    524.39                    536.19
                     : Creditors for Expenses                      65.42                      51.43

                 1,374.34                  1,175.40
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ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
PARTICULARS

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
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NOTE - 9
    SHORT TERM PROVISIONS:
a) Provision for employee benefits - gratuity                      26.98                      25.85
b) Provision for Tax                           -                           -

                     26.98                      25.85
NOTE - 10
    PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT:
[As per separate statement attached]                13,937.28                  9,517.92
NOTE - 11
    INTANGIBLE ASSETS                      22.74                      22.85
    CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS:                      33.77                        4.57
[As per separate statement attached]

NOTE - 12
    NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
   Trade Investments/Other investments: At Cost
a) Investment in Equity Shares  - Daya Emergency Care Pvt Ltd -
Related Party - At Cost                      37.50                      31.25
[375,000 equity shares (P.Y. 250,000) of Rs 10 each, which
represents about 12.45% (P.Y. 11%)of the paid up share capital of
Daya Emgergency Care Pvt Ltd and hence not considered as
an Associate Company].
b) Investment in Government or trust securities                        0.50                        0.25

                     38.00                      31.50
i)Aggregate amount of quoted investments                           -                           -
ii)Market value of quoted investments                           -                           -
iii)Aggregate amount of un-quoted investments                      38.00                      31.50
iv)Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments                           -                           -
NOTE - 13
    OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
a) Security Trade Deposits paid                      70.87                      70.12
b) Advance tax paid/TDS receivable - net                      29.05                      64.82

                     99.92                    134.94
i) Secured, considered good
ii) Unsecured considered good                      99.92                    134.94
iii) Doubtful                           -
iv) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts                           -
v) Debts due by directors or other officers of the Company
    or any of them severally or jointly with any other person
    or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in
    which any director is a partner or a director or a member                           -

99.92                    134.94
NOTE - 14

    INVENTORIES:
a) Stock-in-trade (Pharmaceutical products)                    313.73                    255.40
b) Others - X-ray & CT films                        4.23                        1.29

     317.96                    256.70

      Mode of valuation of inventories: Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
PARTICULARS

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
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NOTE - 15
    TRADE RECEIVABLES:
i) Undisputed, Unsecured and considered good                    638.74                    867.96
ii) Undisputed, Unsecured and considered doubtful                           -                           -
iii) Disputed trade receivables                           -                           -
[Refer to Note 15.1 for age-wise analysis of Trade Receivables]                    638.74                    867.96
a) Secured, considered good                           -
b) Unsecured, considered good                    638.74                    867.96
c) Doubtful                           -                           -
d) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts                           -                           -
e) Debts due by Directors or other officers of the Company
    or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
    persons or debts due by firms or private companies
    respectively in which any Director is a partner or a Director or
   a member                           -                           -
NOTE - 16
 CASH AND  BANK BALANCES:
I. Cash & Cash equivalents:
a) Balances with banks
  In Current Accounts                      42.21                      74.90
b) Cash on hand                      18.08                      14.95
                                                                                                      sub-total                      60.29                      89.85
II. Other bank balances:
 In Deposit accounts                    962.05                    910.40
                                                                                                   Grand total                  1,022.35                  1,000.25
i) Earmarked balances with banks (for eg., unpaid dividend)                           -                           -
ii) Balances with banks held as margin money or security
   against borrowings, guarantee, other commitments                           -                           -
iii) Repatriation restrictions                           -
iv) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity                           -

NOTE - 17
 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
a) Prepaid expenses                      47.89                      41.84
b) GST Receivable                        7.18                           -
c) Interest receivable                        0.36                           -
d) Professional fee recoverable from staff                        0.52                           -

 55.95                      41.84
NOTE - 18
  SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
a)  Advances towards purchase of fixed assets                        5.92                        0.94
b)  Other short term trade advances paid                      35.53                        1.38
c) Advance to related Party                           -                      32.75

 41.45                      35.07
i) Secured, considered good                           -
ii) Unsecured, considered good                      41.45                      35.07
iii) Doubtful                           -                           -
iv) Allowances for bad and doubtful advances                           -                           -
v) Loans and advances due by Directors or other officers of
  the Company or any of them either severally or jointly
 with any other persons or amounts due by firms or by
  private companies respectively in which any Director
   is a partner or a director or a member                           -                      32.75

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
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NOTE - 19
    CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS:
(To the extent not provided for)
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts-Income
Tax & PF demand                    399.36                    461.38
b) Guarantees                           -                           -
c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable                           -                           -
d) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
    on capital account and not provided for                      27.16                        5.10
e) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid                           -
f) Other commitments                           -

                   426.52                    466.48
Additional disclousre regarding dividends:
a) Amount of dividend on equity                    595.34                    595.31
b) Dividend amount per share                        0.01                        0.01
c) Arrears of fixed cumulative dividends on preference shares                           -

NOTE - 20
    REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
a) Sale of Medicines                  4,983.46                  3,956.43
b) Diagnostic & Healthcare service income:                  9,661.54                  8,099.32
c) Income from Rajiv Gandhi Hospital-Lakshadweep                           -                      47.65

               14,645.00                12,103.40
NOTE - 21
    OTHER INCOME:
a) Interest income                      85.31                      47.53
b) Other non-operating income                      59.98                    151.12

                   145.30                    198.66

NOTE - 22
 PURCHASE OF HOSPITAL CONSUMABLES:
a) Biomedical Consumables                      52.81                           -
b) Blood Bank Consumables                        3.78                           -
c) Electrical Consumables                      24.70                           -
d) Oxygen Consumables                      23.19                           -
e) Hospital Consumables                      26.63                      51.27
f) Plumbing Consumables                        0.40                           -
g) Pharmacy Consumables                        2.54                           -
h) CSSD Consumables                        0.06                           -
i) Paper Consumabels                        1.58                           -
j) Stationery Consumables                        1.05                           -
k) Dental consumables                        0.37                           -

                   137.13                      51.27
NOTE - 23
    VARIATIONS IN STOCK:
a) Opening stock - X ray films & pharmaceutical products                    256.70                    234.97
b) Closing stock - X ray films & pharmaceutical products                    317.96                    256.70

                     61.27                      21.73

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
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NOTE - 24  .
    EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES:
a) Salaries and allowances                  3,234.46                  2,741.91
b) Managerial Remuneration                    143.65                      96.00
c) Contribution to provident and other funds(ESI)                    179.06                    160.51
d) Gratuity - on actuarial basis                    121.94                      92.78
e) Staff welfare expenses                      15.57                      11.71

                 3,694.67                  3,102.92
NOTE - 25
    FINANCE COST:
a) Interest paid - Debenture holders                      74.14                      75.48
b) Interest paid - Banks                      61.74                      26.86
c) Bank charges                      34.84                      38.99

                   170.73                    141.32
NOTE - 26
    DEPRICIATION:
a) On property plant and equipment                    740.52                    710.21
b) On Intangibles                      18.66                      27.37

                   759.18                    737.58
c) Less: Excess Depreciation Reversed                           -                    (14.70)

                   759.18                    722.88

NOTE - 27
    OPERATING & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
    HOSPITAL OPERATING EXPENSES:
a)  Ambulance Service charges                      17.26                        7.17
b)   AMC Charges                    137.34                    132.12
c)  Cloth & Linen                        4.46                        7.43
d)  Professional fees                        2.08                        2.01
e)  Power and fuel                    332.61                    260.84
f)   Waste Disposal/Infection control Charges                      10.66                        8.74
g)  Water Charges                        1.64                        3.62
h)  Scan Charges                    196.73                    400.56
i)   Lab charges paid                      94.61                      53.46
j)   Audiology charge/OAE test charges paid                      27.94                      18.48
k)  Ventilator charges                        4.10                        2.25
l)   Rehabilitation charges                      39.14                      26.15
m)  DNB Expenses                      47.91                      14.91
n)  Monitor hire charges                        3.87                        0.50
o)  Consultancy Fees- Insurance                      91.07                      76.50
p)  Disinfestation                        5.92                        4.92
q)  Cleaning supervision charges paid                                               151.77                   108.92
r)   Booking charges                      19.15                      20.06
s)  Covid Vaccine                           -                        0.02
t)   Accredition charges                        5.62                        9.18

1,194.78                  1,157.83
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ended March 31,

2024
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ended March 31,

2023
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    ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
a)  Advertisement/Sales promotion expenses                      16.72                     49.67
b)  Auditors Fees:                           -                           -
     For Statutory Audit                        2.07                       1.69
     For Tax Audit                        1.06                       0.85
     For Other services/ Expenses                        0.24                           -
c)  Coolie charges                        5.82                       5.73
d)  Internal Audit Fees                        0.31                       1.53
e)  Insurance Premium Paid                        3.33                       3.70
f)   Consultation Charges Paid                        8.76                       9.23
g)   Donation paid                        0.91                       1.53
h)  Miscellaneous Expenses                        9.07                       4.37
i)   Printing and Stationery expenses                      59.85                     25.04
j)   Repairs & Maintenance
     To Building                      20.09                       0.22
     To Plant & Machinery                      42.26                     42.62
     To Others                    112.09                   116.75
k)  Sitting fees                        9.52                       6.90
l)   Research & Training Charges                      23.29                     10.97
m) Subscriptions                        8.11                       8.51
n)  Rates,Taxes and Licenses                      38.77                     32.05
o)  elephone/Internet & Postage charges                      13.32                     15.63
p)  Travel expenses                        4.76                       6.78
q)  Office expenses                        5.71                       5.79
r)   MOU Discount                    212.48                     99.05
s)  Bad debts written off                      81.57                   102.88
t)   Rent                      75.23                     69.65
u)  Expense of Rajiv Gandhi Hospital -Lakshadweep                           -                     80.90
v)  Software Implementation And training                      19.71                     11.29
w)  Other Expenses                      15.11                           -

                   790.14                   713.33
                                                                                            GRAND TOTAL                  1,984.92                1,871.15

 Current period
ended March 31,

2024

Previous Year
ended March 31,

2023
PARTICULARS

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
:8:

Date: July 4, 2024
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Vide our report of even date attached :

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Date:  July 4, 2024
For V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

         (Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
Partner (M.No. 070112)

(Sd/-)
1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)
2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ

(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120
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Annual Report - 2023-24

Date: July 4, 2024
For V VENUGOPALAN & ASSOCIATES,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
(Firm Registration No. 010739S)

         (Sd/-)
V VENUGOPALAN, B.Com. FCA
Partner (M.No. 070112)

DAYA GENERAL HOSPITAL LIMITED
CASH  FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Vide our report of even date attached :

               2023 - 24       2022 - 23
Particulars

A)   CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;-

        Net profit before tax  as per profit & Loss Account           1,518.82           1,074.26
        Adjustment for:
         i)Depreciation               759.18              722.88
         ii)Interest Expenses               170.73              141.32
         iii)Interest income               (85.31)               (47.53)
         iv)(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed asset                 (9.03)                (2.90)

835.57 813.76
 2,354.39 1,888.02

       Operating Profit before working capital changes:
       Adjustment for:
        i)  (Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables               126.81                  3.99
        ii)  (Decrease)/Increase in  Other Payables /Liabilities               248.30             (146.45)
       iii) Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories               (61.27)               (21.73)
        iv) Decrease/(Increase)  in Trade & Other Receivables               229.23              279.79
     v) Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & Advances & Deposit               (20.49)             522.58                97.23            212.84

2,876.96  2,100.86
        Income tax/TDS Paid (net of refund)            (335.84)              (287.91)
      NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      (A)           2,541.13        1,812.95

B)   CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:-
        i)  Purchase of Fixed assets           (5,214.11)             (706.98)
       ii)  Sale of Fixed assets                 15.51                  8.98
       iii) Interest income                 85.31                47.53
       iv) Increase in Investments                 (6.50)                (6.25)

     NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       (B)         (5,119.79)      (656.72)
C)   CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:-
        i) (Decrease)/Increase in secured loans(loan from banks)            2,903.30                (6.45)
        ii) (Decrease)/Increase in Short term loan  from banks               463.53             (233.64)
        iii) Interest and Finance Charges:
                               Interest Expense              (170.73)             (141.32)
                               Dividend Paid(including DDT)              (595.34)             (595.31)
      NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (C)           2,600.76      (976.72)
Net Increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalants               22.10        179.50
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalants           1,000.25            820.76
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH BALANCES         1,022.35         1,000.25
Less: Deposits maturing beyond three months             962.05             910.40
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents              60.29           89.85

Rs. in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Date:  July 4, 2024
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

(Sd/-)
1. Dr. THALAKKALE KOTTILAVEETIL RAVEENDRAN

(DIRECTOR)
DIN: 05341851

(Sd/-)
2. Dr. VALIAKATH KUTTIPPURATHEL ABDUL AZEEZ

(MANAGING DIRECTOR)
DIN: 00860120
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